MINISTRY OF WAR TRANSPORT ENQUIRY INTO ACCIDENT
AT POTTERS BAR ON.41COTH FEBRUARY, 1946, HELD AT

LIVERPOOL STREET ON 15TH FEBRUARY, 1946.

PRESENT :

Ministry of War Transport.

Lieut. Col. Sir Alen Mount C.B., C.B,E. {Inspecting Officer)

Rallway Representatives.

Operating Department.

Mr. H.C. Jnhnson, Assistant Superintendent {Southern Area).
Mr. W,E. Green, District Superintendent, Knebworth.

Locomotive Running Superintendent's Department,

Mr. G.A. Musgrave, Locomotive Running Supertintendent,
Weatern Section, Southern Area.

Mr. J,A. Frampton, District Locomotive Superintendemnt,
King's Cross.

Engineer's Department.

Mr. G,B. Barton, Engineer (London), King's Cross.
Mr. A. Moss, Assistant to Enginecr %Signals), King's Cross.
Mr. H.S. Davies, District Engineor, King's Cross.

ghief Mechanical Engineer's Depariment.

Mr. G,H. Taylor, Assistant Carriage & Wagon Works Manager,
Doncasgter, '

Mr. P.C. Barker, Outdoor Carriage & Wagon Assistant,
Bounds Green.

Union Representatives.

Mr. A,E. Goss, National Union of Railwaymen.
Mr. W.J., Cleaver, Associated Soclety of Locomotive
Engineers and Firemen.



LIST OF WITNESSES.

Lineman Edward Cornell ........ss+.s« POTTERS BAR.

Driver stanley Trigg ..evsevsesesse. KING'S CROSS.
Fireman Leonard Jamee Dungete ...... KING'S CROBS.

guard Mrs. Florence May Haden ...... KING'S CROSS.
Firemen Robert Edgar HBrsley ....... GRANTHAM.

Guard wilfred John Pelling ......... KING'S CROSS.
Fireman George 5Sims ....ev0000s+:4.., PETERBOROUGH.

Guard John William Chappell ..¢e¢..« DONCASTER.

31ignalman George Thomas Baines ..... POTTERS BAR SIGNALBOX.
Signalman Colin Charles wWillie ..... MARSHMOOR SIGNALBOX.
Signalman Harold Stanley Colbert ... GREENWOOD SIGNALBOX.

]

Drivers Charles Inmonger of Grantham
and Sidney Thomas Churchill of Peterborough
were not suffliciently recovered to enable
them to be present to give cvidence.

In attendance :-

sydney Raymond Mills, Chief Signal & Telegraph
Inspector, King's Crosas.




LIEUT. COL. SIR ALAN MOUNT'S OPENING STATEMENT :-

In opening the Enquiry the Minlster has asked me ‘te
express hls sympathy with the relatives of those who dled, and
those who were injured. I expect you have the numbers avallsble.
We had better deal with that, and then I should 1ike a brief
statement. of how the relisf work was carried cut, the assistance
rendered, what medical aid wasg available, ote., and when the
lines .were clearcd. We could then.gc on to the informetion
relating to the trains and thé engines concerned -~ thers were
' three passenger trains concernod in this casc ~.and the demage to
'the stock and the permanent way. I thon want the fAumbers pf
the paasengers in ecach train; wherc the casualties occurped;
the train lighting, buffering, types of stock, and description
of collision. Thon I will deal with the statements of-the men
who are available, I gathor the Drivers of the Up and Down
Expresgses are not here, but 1s the Guard of the Up EXpress?

Y

Mr. Johnson. Yos.

sir alen. And the Fireman? L
Mr, Johnoon. Yos.

Sir Alan, And the Firemun of the Down EXpress?

Mr. Johnoon. Yoo.

Sir Alaﬁ. . And thes Drivor and Firoman of the:iocal train?

l‘JJ’ -

Mr. Johnson. Yes, and the women Guard.
Sir Alan ocontinued :- ‘

As you know, the Enguiry is primarily from the technieal
point of: view, snd we have gct to censider 1f wo held all of 1t in
public, whether the statoments of 211 or some of the mon would
prejudice them from the legal point of view. g0 we will get as
far as we c&n, and then I shall have to consider whether we hear
the rest of the avidence in privato.

{' Mr. Johnson then made the following Btatement ;1‘f_'

. I regret to report that at approximately 10~ 7p m. on
the 10th February, 1946, the 9-32p.m. passenger train from Hatfield
to King's Crosas, consisting of two quadruple inner suburban coach
sets hauled by Engine 2679, became deralled whilst approaching
Potters,Bar station on the Up Slow Line. The derailed vehicles
fouled the Up and Down Main Lines and wors.almost immediately
run inta by the 9-45p.m. expross passenger.train.from King 8 Croes
to Edinburgh, idoneisting of 13 vehicles, havled by Engine “1j876.

At this time the 5- Ope.m, oXpress passenger train from Bradford to
King's Cross, tonsisting of 10 vehiclss, haulcd by Engine L4833
wag approaching on the Up Main Linses end thia, in turn, became
involved in the collision. :

The ‘engine of the S8-32p.m, train from Hatfield ran into
the burrer stops at the North end of Potters Bar Statlon platform
and was derallaed all whsels; the leading three coachcs of the
train were almost completely demolished, the fourth was badly
damaged and the rear four coaches remained on the ralls. The
engine and the six leading coaches of thae 9-45p.m. express passenger



treln from King's Crosa were derailed, whilgt. tire" cngine-and
leading coach of tho. 5- Op.m. cxpress from Bradford were also
derailed, the engina coming to rest on its aide. Lo

I regret.to say that &8s a result. of the acc;dent two o
passengers sustained fatal injuries, whilst eleven. mo re, '
passengers and six.Company's servants were either inﬂured or .
suffered from shoCk. Of the injured persons se an. paeeengews
and ‘two Company's servants were -taken to. hoapiba for, treattient,
but fortunately in no case were serious .injuries ‘sustained. T
am informed that four passengers and tho Driver of the Bradford
4<rain are still detalned in hospital, but I am pleased to say -
that so far-as: I have been able to ascertain, rll the. injured
Peraons are making satisfactory progress towards recovery.

An immediate call for assistance was sent out, medical
aid being available within five minutes of the adeidént; - -and
local members of the Metropolitan Police were also quickly on
the scene. The Potters Bar Council Ambulance, the Wélihouse -
Hospital Ambulance, Barnet, and the East Barnet Council .
Ambulance were summoned at 10-12p,m. Although no preoise.. -
records are gvallable of their times of arrival on the seens
thege ambulances left their depots at 10~-15p.m,, 10-26pym. &and
10~30p.m. respectively and were at Potters Bar station within &
very few minutes. Doectors G. Lang, W. Park porter, Bridget’
Noone and Mary Allin of Potters Bar, together with the
Ambulances mentioned, rendered. invaluable assistance;’ and the
injuped persons were conveyed to the Potters Bar Hospital and
the Wellbause Hospltal, Barnet, without delay after receiving .
Tirgt aid treatment on the spot., . Aseistanco was also given by
a number of local residenta and by passengers off the wralng .
involved. .

b

: .- .1 should like to express the Company's, appreciation
of the .excellent work done by all concerned : _

.. - As a result of the accident the Up and DOWn Main and
'8low Lines were blocked and extensive damage was done to the
Permanent Way and signalling. The .King's Cross breakdown
vang and steam crane were ordered at 10-30pim., leaving King's
Cross at 12~16a.m. and arriving at the scene of. the mishap at
1=-50a.m. The Peterborough breakdown vans and steam crane
were also ordered to the. scene, lcaving Peterborough at
12~ Ba.m. and reaching Pottere Bar at; 2-25a,m. )

: The Down Main end Down Slow Linea were - re-opened ror
traffic at 6~-55p.Mm. .on 11 th- February, and-the. Up Main and»Up
Slow Lines at 12- ha.m, and 2-.0a, mﬁ rospectively on 12th
- Pebruary. As the: result of damaga to the. signallins BT

installetions, all Down trains arc being. pautioned., Normal 't
working is in operation on the Uprinea. . S :

: During the time the lines were blocked Main Line '
traine end trains to and from the Cambridge Brar¢h. -via
Hitehin were diverted via Hertford, connecting shuttle servicee
-being put into operation between 3= o

1. Hitchin, Stevenage and Hatrield-
2. King 8 Cross and New Barne L

Sy In addition,“ "Push and Pull“ service wap. instituted
between New Barnet, Hadley Wood and Potters Bar, and a 'bus
gervice was Also put into operation betwegen New Barnet and
Hatfield.



I sﬂbuld like to express, on behalf of the
Directors and the Management of the L.N.E.R., their
sympathy with the relatives of thc passengers who werc
fatally injured, and also to express their regret to ‘
those who eustained injury in this unfortunate nccident.

Sir Alan Mount then raised the following pointgi~
Sir Alan. 40- 7p.m., that was the time of the accident?
Mr.Johnson.Approximately, yes. '
8ir Alan., Wwherse were the paéaengers who were killed?
Mr.Johnson. In the'local train, the 9-32p.m, from Hatfield.
Sir Alen. Whiqh carriage?

Mr. Johnson.We ‘cannot be certain of that;  we know it was
- & very lightly loaded train.

sir Alan; How many passengers?

1. Johnson. Approximately 30.

gir Alan.. Of whom'two were killed, and how many jinjured?
Mr.Johnson.Eight injured.

Sir Alan. Were the'Driver and Fireman of the local train
injured?

Hr}hohnsphzﬂo; they suffered from shock.
Sir Alan.: what abvout the CGuara?

Mr-Johnson.The Guard of the local train was slightly
injured. , .

83ir Alan. How many people were in the Down express?
Mr.Jahnson.About 64 Firet and 531 Third, a total of 595.

S8ir Alan. Some 595 passengers in the Down Express, of
whom one was sglightly injured. Driver
Inmonger and Fireman Harsley, also QGuard
Pelling also suffered from shock. There were
some 450 passengers in the Up Express, of
whom two were slightly injured, and Driver
Churchill and Fireman Sims were slightly
injured and suffered from shock. Is that
right? : S L -

Mr. Johnson Yes.

8ir Alan. Altogether out of some 1,075 pasgengers two
were killed, 14 were slightly injured, also
six Company's servants,

8ir Alan. Why waa the loeal train so lightly loaded?

M Jotnaon. It 48 a counecting train from Hatfield to

London, and follows olosgely on a fast train,
80 thaet it only serves looal atations.



Sir Alan. The local train, the 9-3%2 from Hatfield,
consisted of two quadruple inner suburban
coach sets, hauled by engine 2679. What
is this type? :

Mr. Musgrave. N.2. 0-6-2.

Sir Alan. - Hauled by tank engine 2679 0-6n2 type, fitted
‘ - with the vacuum brake on-#11 coupled wheels,
and operating brakes on all wheels of the
~train. Engine weight:is 74 tons, 9 cwts.,
“in working order. ~ The train weight was
168 tons 3 cwts. . Each quadruple set is
carried on 5 bogles. The total length of the
local train was 375 ft. 3% ins. (Over the -
engine as well). The first three coaches
of the local train were completely wrecked,
and the frames of -the first twa. werelcarried
forward by the engine of the Down train. -~ - -
The frame of the third wvehicle remaihed on
the site; three compartments of the fourth’
vehicle were wrecked, but the frame wag
intact. It was on the crossover. The
remaining four coaches of the rear quadruple
set were untouched' except for the rear end’
of the last coach, which was slightly demaged
by contact with tite leading coach -of <the :
Down eXxpress. what action, if any, did: '~
articulation have orr this damaga?. "+~

Mr. Taylor. I would suggest_noﬁ‘ahﬁ}neir._ﬂ

s b e I

S:I.P.Llﬂn. .. Wh.y'} o ‘. ) .:.\_: o .

Mr. Taylor. Because the speed was such that the differenoce -
batween arn articulated vehicle and-a. spring
" hdyne buffer loadcd vehicle would not be so . =
noticeable, and the derailment was‘primarily
due also to splitting the points between the::
first and second bogies. ,

Sir Alan. owing to the position in ‘whicn the ‘bogies
were subsequently found, it is assumed that

the points were moved between the Tiret and Lo e

seocond bogies of the leading coach?
Mr. Taylor. Yes. '

Sir Alan. . Therefore the weight of the resr of the train
pushed thege front two coaches further out?

Mr. Teylor. I would euggest that. c ';ﬂ _;:; f\

Sir Alan. Hence-the_fouling of,tﬁeeboenfneir Lioe?
Mr. Taylor. Yes. _ L o
" 8ir Alan. These frames,'ﬁere they found coupled together?

Mr, Taylor. NO. o o



8ie Alan.
Mr, Taylor.

Sir Alan.

Mr. Johnson.

Sir Alan.

Mr. Taylor.

gir Alan,

HI'. TaY].OI‘. -

8ir Alan.

Mr. Taylor.
Sir Alem.,

Mr. Taylor.

what happened?

The engine carried forward the under-frame

of the second coech in front of 1it, and
drggged the under-frame of the first coach = .

with it; the right-hand buyffer of the engine

cayght the uynder-frame at the spiiculateq eng,

It dragged the frame of the first.coach, and
ushed the frame of the sgcond ¢cach ahcad of

- The right~hand side ¢f the engine of the Down

train hit the under-frame of the first vehicle
at the trailing end, i.e., at the articulated
and, thon etruck the frame of the second coach
in the contre on the left-hand side of the
vehicle facing north, carrying this {rame on
tho front of the e¢ngine and buckling it in the
shape of a lotter "U".

The. Down train was travelling at normal speed,
at 40 = 45 mipehe?

Yos. e e

'The Down Bxpress, ongine Vi2. type, 4876, 2~6-2
type, weighing 145 tone 2 cwts. in working order,

operating thoe vacuum drake on all wheels of the
train exoopt the centre pair of tho six-wheeled
van, - The train weighed 383 tons 13 owts., and
she rfiret six coaches were derailed. The
leading left-hand buffer of the lsading coach
punoturad ths tender and raised it up. The

front of the engine came to rest 130 yards north

of the signal box, lcaning over to the right.

There were six coaches derailed. The train was

buck~eye ocoupled throughout, oxcept for the
trailing van. Screw-coupled at the tendar.

Did the buckeye have any effect on keeping these

odaches gtraight?

Yos, definitely. The buckeye cdupling kept
tlie coaches togother and ptrevented telescoping.
It held tho whole train together.

10 you think it kopt the fitst six coaches in
line?

Yeoss

The Up BExpress oconaisted of 10 coaches hauled
by engine 4833, V.2 typo, 2=-6~2, with six-
wheeled tender, operating the wvacuum brake on
the coupled wheels, and on all wheels of the
train.  The engino weighed 145 tona 2 owts.,
in qgrging order; the coaches weighed 307 tons
3 owtis. The train was buckeye coupled.  .-.

throughout, and electrically lighted throughout.

Wae the other elsctrically lighted?

Yes, except the rear van.

The engine over-turned to the left, adjacent to,

or immediately alongslde the engine of the Down
train, and the first coach was dersailed '‘all
whogls. what caused the derailment?

I do not know.

-5-
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g8ir AlaD. Have the Company s Officers. 6oh§1dered the

' cause of the . engine over—turning°

KA

Mo, thnﬂon. The theory is that the DOWn engine struck the
o Up engine. The -avidence of one wltness.
indicates that the Up Express did come to a
stand, and it 1Is therefore our conclusion-:that
it was the engine.of the Down Express that.
struck the eriginé of the Up ExXpress and threw
it over, and afgrwards-went. over to the right
1tself. . The ¢ngine had theAdebris round 1t.
Sir Alan. AYre you EUggPBthg that the engine of the Up
train was at .a étand when its engine was
turned over? T
I L et
Mr. Johnson. Y¥&8., ... .38 : ' SRS - R _
8ia 4Alan. And you bhase thal on the bvidence ‘of the ‘
Lilneman? EE SR -
T N i o
Mr. Johgson. Iea. ‘ o '-u;,';_’,_-,; 3 :i:'._;‘_*"
Sir Alan. surely the | 6ard and Dri}ler 91‘ _”i; 'ee vn\‘gina must
. ) _.mow wha‘} h Bpengd? . -” py,_ﬂ- LY : ave _.\.
R : -u'a'- 2 SRS T '-
Mr-'JOhnaon.; We have,a 3iatemant from, thqm;, o ;nivf
' . S : 193
Sir Algp. ' .. The. ageident néﬁmned at \r‘h_atctime? s
Mr. . qunaon.‘.lwt'@immtely 10~ 7pom. """'--”w" e
Sir Alan.,‘,w b Wb&n aia’ tjﬁ’e, Tibst collision take plac.e .lrith
SRR the DOWT[ T}Z‘Efin? Geea _. IREENEY AV
- e \Iu-. PR
Mr. Johnﬁon. “an the ‘evidencs <, jmmeaiately afterwarda, within
a matter of secosz. _ hJi#Jin NIV -
- "*-wn+ PR L ORI
Sir Alan. 180 . ity s a’ few econds after 49# 79:;.4£hat the
. . Down trailn came t6 a stand, ‘and your suggestion
is that-'the. %p train was at. thm& mamnntuatreﬂdy
at a ataRd a2t 10~ 7p.m.2 ™ o
Mr. Johnaon,tLOn the evidence ol the Lineman that .irain-@id e
" "ecome to a stand.
. e H ﬂ,‘ &0 0 i
Sir Alan. Now may -I ask_ahqyt.the. trqq snaqﬁng_of
. :the tracks, MF, Bﬁpton, the, diétghpa:betvbeﬂ%the
SlOI:Linﬂ, Dead 'ind and the Up Line?;qpu S
RSN o ’..‘ _:.--l. v ] rl
My. Barton. ffk‘wh. ._" \ et L il ‘-'5" . : i‘ .
. L - e l a lh-
Sir alan. Tha dj.qtaﬂa ‘pe‘twqan 1he<Up and Doum I.tnu?
Mr. Bartom. 6 ft.. e TP T e
Sir Alan. “The longth of the.dead end?:’ e e
. e
HI‘. B&I‘tom l'150 f-ti . ) -‘ -.'i _'Z"‘,';T' = ‘(‘ _.,_ ".-.'.h."'_;_:.,.l'...
S ' ¥ s
sir Alan._ﬁg'_what 13 it clear Qx ‘the- orossover? S
Mr. Barton.  About 60 ft. ' .
S8ir Alan. The engine of the local train carried forward
the dend end by about its own length?
Mr. pavies. 26 ft.

-6 -



3ir Alan, what is the length of the engine?
Mr. Musgrave. 37 ft. 44 1ins.

Sir Alan, Do you not put sand drags et this sort of
dead end?

Mr. Barton. Not at a place 30 nsar to the platform.
Not Just for a trap.

Sir Alan. Is thig also used as a shunting neck?
Mr. Moss. Yes, 1t 1s used as a shunting spur.

Sir Alan. Signal 3 permits the engine %o <o up to.the..
dead end?

Mr. Moss. Yes.

sir Alan. 3 locks crossover No.7 normal.

Mr. Moss. Yes.

Sir Alan. t5 locks the crossovor normal?

Mr, Moss, Yas.

Sir Alan. And 12 requires crossover 7 and the bar 4?

Mr. Moss. Yeg, that 1s correct.

8ir Alan. The bar stands normally out? And does 3
reguire the bar?

Mr, Moss. Yes, 3 18 released Dy No.4.

3ir Alan. 12 1s therefore locked by No.7 normal.

Mr. Moss.” ~Definitely. |

Sir Alan. 41 and 14 - 1s 14 locked by 7 pulled? .

Mr. Moss. ’_?.loqks 14 dead.

sir Alan. ﬁa’s_ that been checked?

Mr‘.-l"MQ;"aﬂs'-_' . Yes, | ;-__/ |

sir Aianﬁi "Crossover points 7 locks 1u_hofm&l}:and can 14
" " be obtained with 7 elthcr way? ‘

Mr. Moss. Yes,.1%.1s relecased by 4 and &4 will lock 7 both
Ways [

Sir Alan. These apé_iong vurning oil lamps, are they?
Mr. Moss. Yes, sir.
Sir Alan. And the distance of the Inner Homes from the box?

Mr., Moss. 340 yards from the box to the Inner Home. The
. Quter Homes are HL2 yards from tho Inner Homes.



8ir Alan.

Mxr.

Sir

Mr.

Mp.
Sip

Mo,
Sir

Mr,
gir
Mr.

Sin

Mr.
Sir

Mr,

Sir

Mr.,
-8irp

sir

Mr,.

Moss.

Alan.

Moss.

Moss.

Alan.

Moas,

Alan,

Johnson.

Alan.

Johnaon.'

Alan.

Jommson. .

Alan.

Johnson.

Alan.

Johnson.

Alan..

" Mosa.

Alan,

Johnson,

why are these Inner:Haomes. out so far?
Wwhy eare they 340 yards away from the
Jjunction? why are they ne&t brought in
nearery

They haVe been there about 30 years, so far
as my records show. They are outslde the
siding.: SR

And thec doll of the Main Line signal is
locatéd over the Slow Line? . Ses oy

Yes.,

But the Quter Homes are nearer .in? The ., . ..
doll of the Main Line is about over the
Main Line?

Yes. Wider spacing.

Is there any queation of the oil in the 1amps9
Were they good lights? o

I have flever heard.any complaint. :

This local train, can you tell me was it = .
on time?
LT

No, about 20 minutes 1ate.’

Potters Bar 18 13 miles’ from London?

Lo

124, AT

The box .ta the north of Potters Bar isg. s
Marshmoor, mileage 4153 from Londen, 3 miles
north of Potters Bar. Mershmoor :works the:
crogsover on the south side of Brookmans

Park station lsading from Up Slow to {(p.Main?

.YéB.

It also works the Up Slow Intermediate Bleck
Home which is operated for every train by
No.l4 lever in Marshmoor Box, The Up Main ..
Intermediate Block Home signal, howeveyr, works
antomaticelly, and is only replaced to danger
by lever when it is necessary to work the
gonnection, .What is the block working- .
between: Marshmoor and Potters Bar?

Track oircult and train descridbing bell.

And the operation on the other side of
Potters Bar is by.train describer?

By bell descriding.

.Both lines on either side being. continuously

track clirculted?

Exoept Tor a short length between the Up Slow

and Up Main Inner Homes and the Up Main
gtarter,

Is the local train booked to stop at Brookmans
Park? :

Yoa.



Sir Alan.

Mr,

Sir

Mr.
sir
Mr,

Sir

Mr,

Sir

Mr,
Sir
Mr.

Sir
Mr.
Sir

Sir
Mr.
Sir
Mr.
sir
Mr,
sir
Mr.
Sir
Mr.
gir

Johnaon.,

Alan.

Johnson.
Alan,

Johnson.

Alan.

Johnson,

Alan,

Jonson.
Alanl

Johnson.

Alan.
Johnson.

Alan,

" Johnson.

Alan.
Johnaon.
Alan.
Johnson.
Aten.

"Johnson.

Alan.
Johnson.
Alean,
Johnson.
Alan.,

Is Brookmans Park island platforﬁ served by
both Up Slow and Up Maln?

Yos,

It left Hatfield 20 minustes late, and stopped
where? - -

Including signal deiays?
Were there signal delays?

Yes, ‘1t was stopped by signoalis at Hatfield
Up S8low Advance Starter.

why?

waiting clear of a previous train on the Up
Slow Line, which was the 7-15p.m. passenger
train from Peterborough to King's Cross.

S0 there were two trailns on the Up Slow

- running block to block?

Yea,
Waers was this first sSlow train stopped?

It stopped in Hatfield station. I+ -would

be turned to Slow line (Platform Roed).

The stoppling train would be started from the
bay. This train, belng a connection, follows
the Peterborongh irain.

“The Petervciw.gn (ruin dld not stop?

Yes, at datileld,

Did 1t stop at Potters Bar?

No.

It came through on the Up Slow Line?
Yes. .

Over crossover No.7?

Yeés.

At what time did it pess through Potters Bar?

It passed through Potters Bar at 10~ 3p.m.

What time was the accident?

.10- Tp.m,

80 you had a train over this road at 10- 3p.m.?
Yes. .

Then why did this local train follow this
other train on the Slow Linoef

w 9 -



ur.

Sipr alan.

Mr.

Mr.

Sir

Sir

Mr.

Sip

Mr,
Sir

Mr,

Mr.
Sir

Mr.
sir
Mr.
Sir

Mr.

Mr.

Johnson.

Johnson.
Alan,
Jobhnson,
Alan,
Johnson.
Alan.

Jo hnBOIl.
Alan.,
Johnson.

Alan.,

Johnson.

Alan.

Johnson.

Johnson,
Alan,
Moss.

Alsa.

Joaneon.
Alan.

Mo6s.

with the expresses following it would have
to be sent Slow Line.

] The local -train wes run on the slow LIhe'*

because of the two Up expresses; ‘the 5+ Op.m.
from Bradford and the 5-30pym. fxrom Leeds?

Yes.

Is this a normal bookiﬁg £ﬁén?

It definitely foilows £hé.P5te}b6r6uéh train.
Was the Peterborcusgh trainzlate? a :
Yes. '

That was the cause of the delay to the local
train?

Yes.
How long haas this train been working?
At least since October 1.at. i

Why digd the Peterborough go S}ipw .on, thia
occaaion?

-

Because there was an Up express from Grimsby
coming along on the Maln Ling, .that is why
he ran the Peterborough on the 'S10w Line.

Then are these Up Main.&nd Slow Lines being
used indiscriminately?

As mecessaly.

When was the Siow Line converted from a. Gogds

to 8 Passenger Line?

On 6th January.

What has been the delay in thatg
In what way, sief? '

We authorised this as boing a Passenger Line

a8 long:time ago. The crosgover was authorised
at Marshmoor in February, 1942, but it was
authoriaed to be turned over .from Goods to Slow
in July '45. I was wondering why it had taken
such a long time. - _ o

We had the authority in Augus#, 1945..

But you did not turn it till January?

It was originally programmed in the latfer part
of the year. It appeared in the book in the

"week before but was postponsd.

- 40 =



Johnson.
Alan.

Johnson.

Alan.

Musgrave.

Sir Alsn,

Mr,
8ir

Mr.

Sir

Mr.

Mx,

Mr,
Sir

Mr.
Sir

¥r,
Sir

Mr.

Johneon,

Alan,

Barton.

Al&an.

Davies.

Barton.

Davies.

Alan.

Daviag.
Alan,

Gresen,

Alan.,

Johnaeon.

How is 1t operating now it has been sanctioned;
as a8 Slow Line and Permissive for goods, as from
January 6th?

Yes.
How was it notified?

Here 1s a copy of the District Superintendent's
circular and the Permanent Way Notice.

Did the Driver know this?
Yos8.

This alteration was notified in District
Superintendent's circular 4th January, and
confirmed in Permanent Way Programme No.452
commencing 12th January.

You cannot have s sand drag because you want
this spur for shunting purposes?

Y6B.

Damage, Mr. Barton.
track wers damaged?

How many yards of

About 300 yards of track including switches
and crosalngs.

Some 300 yards of track in all on the Up and
Down and Slow Line were badly damaged
including two sets of points and crossings?
Yes.

The Down Starting signal was carried away, and
three ground disc signals were destroyed,

mogt of the rodding, wires, cranks, etc,
broken.

Tell me about the block post in the other
direction, Marshmoor is 153 miles, 1Is it

Greenwood? What is the mileage? Is it on
the south side of the tunnel?

Yes.,

The north mouth of the tunnel is about # mile
south of Potters Bar?

Yes.

And Greenwood signalbox is about 10 miles,
namely, 22 miles south of Potters Bar?

At the south esnd of the three tunnels.

There are three tunnels before you come to
Greenwood?

Yes.
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'§ia Alan. . A rising gradient of - ?
Mr. Davies. 1 in 200. '
Sir Aian. The ﬁéak of the'gradiént ig at Potters Bar?

Mr., Johnason. Just on the south side-of Potters Bar...
'sir Alan. Then 1£'atarts to fall?_ Pl e e e

Mr. Johnson. Yes.

YT



Firemzn Robert Zdgar Harsley wes then called and the
followlng statement read:-

"T am 37 years 10 months of age. I have been on the
Company for 20 years and I have been a Firemag for nearly 4 years.

on Sunday, February loth I signed on duty et 3.55pm. ang

accompanied Driver Lnmonger on the 4.30pm. trein to London and the
9.45pm. King's Cross to Grantham. I had previously had 32%

hours rest. We hed a normal Journey in the Up direction end the
seme in the Down until we reached Potters Bar. All signals that
I saw from Greenwood onwards were in the off position and I am
gquite sure that the Potters Bar Outer and Inner Home signals
were in the off position. I did not see the Potters Bar Down
Starting signel. As we got to the North end of Potters Bar
Station I felt the engine hit something and I was thrown across
the cab. When the engine came to a stand it wos leenlng over
badly towerds the right. As soon as possible I c¢limbed out of
the left-hand cab window and went with my driver to the signalbox,
to see what had happened. I should estimate our speed at 45
miles per hour when we hit the obstruction. The weather was
clear and fine™,

Q. You were firing with Driver Inmonéér?
Sir Alen.

A. Yes.

Q. Wera you injured.

A, Brulises and cut thumb.

ATe you back on duty?

A. Yes, but not on the regular job.
Q. Wes the engine steaming all right?
A, Yes, sir.

Coel ell right?
A. Yes, sir.

What about Potters Bar Distant signal?

A, I got that myself, that was quite all right.

Q. Wes the engline derailed directly 1t hit the
obstruction? '

AL I could not say, I was thrown sbout a lot, I

suppose it would be.

Q. Do you think the derailment started at once?

A Probably, yes.

Q. Did you see the obstruction?

A No. The throttle was fully open ané she was slipping.
Q. Did she stert slipping stralznt away?

A. . - Yes, _

Q. ' It rapidly came to & stana?
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A,
Q.

What speed were you doing when you hit the wreekage?
About 45,

The regulator was open?

Yes.

Hed it been open coming up the bank?

Yes.

Did the driver close the regulator at omce?

Yee, a8 far as I could say he d4id. I was firing
at the time, and was thrown on the floor.

You climbed out as soon as you oculd. Which side?
The left-hand side.

Did you have any difficulty?

Not in getting out,

What d4id you do then?

We went back to the signal box,

Before then? Did you have a look round?

Yos, to see if we could do anything.

Did you look round the front of your engine?

No. |

You knew you were off the road and that you had hit
something?

We were too bewildsred.
When did the Up express come into you?
I really could not say. We aid not f£ind the Up
A R e
found the other engine the other side.
Did you remember the other engine hitting you?
No, certainly not, sir.
Did you go back to the signal box stralght away?
Yes,
Did you not walk round the front of the engine?
No, |
Did your Driver do the same thing?

Yas.

So neither of you went to look and see what was in
the front of you?

Not till after we had been to the uox.
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“You 8o not remember the Up express hitting you?
For ell you knew the Up express might hcve been there

Yes, Lt probably was. 1 cannot remember.
The weether wus clear?

Yes.

Did you see the driver of the other engine?
Not till afterwards.

Did you go to the box?

We both went to the box.

What did you do there?

We asked the signelman what was the metter. He said
"Tt isn't you, you are cil right."

Then you went bock to the engine?

Then we had a look round and found the other engine

- on ite'vside.

'.:_.

L

A,

2. Gl
M¥r.Claaver.

.
¥r.Cleaver.

.

Mr.Cleaaver.
A,

Qe
Sir alen.

A.

Did you spesk to the other Driver?

No, he was not thera.

How did you get home?

We went book with the recr portion of our traln

into King's Cross and Down on the two o'clock.

You are guite sure you possed the signals clear?

I am sure of that.

Did you .observs the Inner Home - your Ionar Howme
signal?

Yes, thet is my side.

What distance were you south of the Outer Home
slgnel when you saw the Quter and Inner Homes?
About 100 yards, Then I picked up the shovel
and commenced firing.

You were still firing when the accident occurred?

Yes.

Why were you firlng at the top of the bank?

If you get a Yittle bit on there, then you can get
a run through Hatfield if you have got a good enginpa.

Dd you always do that?
Well, nearly always; sir,
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Goods Guerd John Willicm Cheppell of Doncuster wus
then called and the following statement reed:-

*] am 60 years of ‘agz. I have bBeen on the Company
39 years and have been a Goods Guerd for &8 yeers.

I signed on duty on Sunday, February 10th et- 5.50pm.
to work the 6.5pm. Express Passenger train (5.0pm. ex
Bredford) from Doncaster to King's Cross. We had a good
run up and passed through Hatfiseld without a check. We
proceeded normally past Marshmoor but as we were approachip
Potters Bar there was & very sharp application of the
brake. Immediately the brake dpplication wes mede I went
to the window to look out on the left side. I got the
window open and was looling eut‘and the train then cams to
an abrupt stop. I had & King's Cross driver and fireman
with me, who were trovelling home passenger, zand it was
decided that they would go forward cnd see what had
heppened and I went back to protect myi:rain "

Qs Are you s8till s Goods GuarQ?
Si]‘.‘ Alano . . Ha ’.
A, Yes, sir. )
Q. What were you dolng on ;gg‘passenger train?
A. We work them at Doneaster - all the specials and . | .
all the reliefs. . .. ‘ 'y
Q. What were you, doing when the brake wes applled?
A. I believe I was sitting on the Guard's secat when !
1t was applied.
Q. What speed were you running when the train
suddenly stopped?
A, I heve no idea. I cannot iell you.
Q. Did you think you had hit something? -
A. .- I.felt that we had hit something, . .
Q The troin was traveliing. ' The train was not at

& stand when the collision occurred? TYou are
quite certaln about that? '

.o
A. . He stopped at once when I.was looking out of the R
. . Window. -

Q... . ...:Did it throw you down? . )
A. It hit mé hard agaliist the side of the window, 0 %
Q.. . . You sre quite certain thot the train was not W:‘ -

at a stand? -1?'41:':
A, Yes. o
Q. Had you seen a slgnal? -
A, . I had seen no signals whutever. :;
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whet tlme was 1t%?

Approximately 10.12pm. when I looked et my watch. -
When did you look at your wateh?

Just after 1t happened.

When wus your watceh last checked?

The morning before.

Good watch?

Very good watch,

You are sure about the time?
Yeg, I am sure it was 10.12.

Cannct you give me an idea of the speed of the
train?

I cannot.,- -

Was Lt walking speed? What speed were you coming
at through Hatfleld? '

We were travelling at a nice speed, the same as
we usually do. We had had no check.

Would you say the speed was about 50 m.p.h.%
I wouldn't sey not %o be sure. We were
travelling 2t the usnal speed., We were Jjust
passing in the time that we should have done,.
Were you on tlme?

We were 20 minutes late all the way.

| Were you making up timé?
" Nons whatever.
You wére travelling on séhédule?” 1
L Yes.

'Wﬁét is ﬁhé;éphgau;e 5paed?

To pass Hatfield and.étoP at Finsbﬁfy Park the
booking 1s 19 minutes, namely 48 m.p.h.

How loag hadﬁthe brake Ween on when you opame to
& stand? Was it just momentary or hed it been
on sdme timé? -

I cannot peil“you. fit was all done in quick time,

It was epparent that & collision hed occurred
while the train was moving?

Yos.
You cannot say what the speed was?

No,



Qa What did you do?

As I had a King’'s Tross Driver and Fireman
travelling with re'ard it threw them on to the
floor and they 2ot np 2gain and we immediately
agreed that sometniing wes wreng. They went
forward ené¢ I went back to protect the train and
the Slow roed. R

L

Q. That was znother rezcson for you saying thet it
wes & ¢0llisina? ‘

A We kncw 1% wusn't an ordinary stop with the bump
we gci. o

Q. Had you z;nrﬁy'bdme to a stand before you felt
the buop? o

A It was a churp bump end we never shifted forward
or backw:rd,

Q.. How long had the brakes been hard on?

A, I cannot tell you.

Q. A Second or two?

A. Ll cannct: tell you. I got up from the seat

after the brake was applied. I knew it was
something unusudl the brake going on like that.

I got the window down end looked ocut. The brakes
were scretching and scraping as well. I could
hear them. I haove no ldea how long it took,

Q. Immediately you ran to the window this bump came?

A, It seemed to be straight away.

Fireman George Simi® was then called and his
statement &8 follows read:-

"I am a firemen in the employ of the L.N.E.
Rallway stationed at New England, Psterborough, and reside
at No. 232 Walpole Street, Peterborough.

C T On Suncay, 10th February, 1946, I booked on duty
at New England at 7.49pm. and in compan with Driver
Churchill walked to Peterborough North gtation and relieved
the Driver and Flreman on engine 4833 attached to 336 Up
Special Bradford to Kiang's Croass.

" We left Peterborough 8.50pm., stopped at Hitehin,
.‘continued_to Jotters Bar, where I noticed that all boards
.were off.' it a point between the OQuter Distant endé Inner
Distant signel T was looking out on the right-hand side of
the engine when I noticed someone waving u red lamp and at

. the same tlme saw the Inner Distant salgnal go to danger.

Almost 1mmeaiate1y I saw what appeared to be a
coach across the Up line.

I sew my Driver apply the brake and the train
almost came to a stand. I tried to apply the hand brake, but
was too late, the engine was struck by an engine on the Down
roed which turned our engine on 1ts side."



2.

S1v 4lan,

Hrw is Driver Churchill?®?

He is looking better now than he did when T saw him on
Xonday,

Whet ls your age?

18 years.

How long heve you been in the Company's service?

Two years in the Locomotive Department and two years

"in the Trarfic.

You started at¢ the age of 147
Yes, in 1942, '

Did you see the Distant, the Quter Home and the
Inner Home?

Yes,.

Just tell me about these signals?

The OQuter Distant is not a colour light..

Do you remember passing Brookmans Park?

ﬂo, I was fiffng. |

Tedl me what yon saw approaching Potters Bar?

Potters Bar is whie voiuon wasTe we usuaily stop firing

for a pariod ani I Lo cub frowm my siac of the englne.
The Quter signal wurc recn and the Inner Distant wes

" Green and then they wceut down to "Danger™.

Did you sees these signals go to "Danger".?
Yes. -

¥Wihich did you see go to "Danger"?

The Inner Distant.

Are you talklng sbout a colour lightrsiénal?
Not at Potters Bar. Just an ordinery signal,
You mean an ordinary oil light signeal?

Yes .

You had not seen eny colour lights before that?

No, I must have been firing at the time.

.. Whet was t¢this Distant signal showing?

It was Green,
Was thsre enother one on the post?

Yes, there was one for the Slow road,.
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¥het was that showing?
Danger _ R q_ﬁgf
What was its iight?

Red,

After thet, what iz the next signal? .

The Inner Distant, which 1s the Home signsal.

What was thet showing?

1t was showirng Creen for us.

After that whatv happened?

I saw the red light that the Guard was showing, swinging
from side to side. I shouted across to .my Driver to
stop but he hed seen it when I 4id. We did our best and
we braked hard and then we got turned ¢ver on our side.
Directly you saw the red light the Driver applied the
brake. . What speed were you travelling,when you saw the
red 1ight?

I could not Jjudge that, quﬁldsay ﬁhe:drdinary speed of
B passenger train, R e

Did you hit something immediately after. the brake wasg

applied?

I did my best to assist end I looked out of the side
agaein and went for the hand brake and the other engine
hit U.B- " .

- You were moving when the other~engiﬁa,hit you?

We were moving very slowly.
You were moving?

Yery slowly.

" Do-you think the other engine was moving too?

I cannot tell you.

You were moving slowly when you. hit.-this obstruction
and you came Yo a stan: =t Once and you turned over.
Was it a repld turn over or & slow one?

I do not know., It all happened so -suddenly.

When you talk about the OQuter Distent and the Inner
Distant, are you quite sure that you don't mean the
ordinary &emaphore Dlstant and the Quter Home signals?
I mean the Outer Hdhe. '
Before you saw the Outer Home, what did you see?

I saw the Up Mein line Distant signal,

Ycu did not see anything before this?

No. $he first signal I saw was the Distant and the
seaogd+ one, the Quter Home, .



'Did you 8ee it yourself go to Red?

The signal you saw ?as.creen?

Yeos, ’

Did you pass it at Green?

Yeé.

You are sure you did pass it at Green?
Yes.

You did mot see it g0 to Red?

No. We only saw the Inner Home go Red;.

How far away were you from it when you saw it go to Red?

3A7train length? -

jNo I do not think it was quite a train length away.

Yes. ,"

There was another signal on the samé post that was
already- at Red? .

Yes. .

One on the left was Red and the other on the righf wag
Green, and you saw.the one on the right g to Red,

and you think you were perhaps a train length away?
Less than a train length.

It wasrﬁhen thatv your Driver appllied the brake?

Yes.

You are quite sure_thgt you saw -that red light yourself?
Yes..", '

You saw that red light before or after you saw this
slgnal, go to Red?

I saw the read light first and then the signal went
to "Danger" 1mmediately

Do you recollect whén ‘the Driver applied the brake

. whether he made & gradaal application er a full

Mr.Musgrave .
A,

applloation.
A full application.

The Driver began to reverse. Do you think he did so
vefpre the collision?

Ho did not mapnage to do it. The. collliaiocn was too

quick.
1

Approaching through Hatfield yod were travelling at
normal speed. Was the regulator open?

Yes.



Q. Did the Driver see the red light at the seme time as
he saw the signal go Red ¥,

A, Yes, both together. ’ .~
Q. Did you think he saw the signal go to Red?
o, Yesl.‘ st

Nagaea!

G S

Linemean Edward cornsll was called apnd the following
statement read:- - e e

"I have bean in the Company's service 29 years, and
have been a Lineman for 14 yearse, at Hitchin, Hatfield end- Barnet.
" On the night of February l0th I wes walking along a footpath
in the dirsction of Brookmans Park ehortly after 10.0pm. on the
Down 8ide of the line. The weather was clear and fine, I was
- approximately 150 yards north of the Potters Bar signalbox when
I notioed e passenger train approaching the station in the Up
direction. I 4id not know at the time whether the traln was on
the Up Main or the Up Slew Line. I knew from my genaral -
experience in the district that it was & locel train, and it
. appeared to me to be running at a normal speed to stop in-‘the
" station. I ne®t heard a crash and:immediately came to the
conclusion that the engine of the train had hit the buffer stops.
I looked round, and noticed that the rear of theé train hed come to a
s stand about Opposite the oattle dock. I could see the tall
lemp oo the train. T

A I theh looked at the Up Main and U{ Slow to Nain Ianer

" Home’ signals, and noticed that both back llghts were showlng
normal, which indlcated to me that both sighals were at danger.
I then noticed s passenger treln approaching in the Up directionm
and when I looked it had pessed the Outer Home signel and the
brakes were being fiercely applied. The traln came to a stend
with the engine just short of a point opposite ‘the rear of the
loca}l passenger train. I also noticed that the doors of several
compertments opened very quickly after the traln hed come to &
stand, and some passengers jemped out &nd .ran across the

Down Main Line on to the bank neer where I wes standing. Within
a matter of seconds I heard & grinding sort of noilse in the
direction of the station, end the next thing I saw was a black
object near the -engine of the Up Express., ,It appeared to me that
there waa a collision, and I then saw the-eagine of the Up
train fall on its side, Later, «t about 10.30pm. I went to the
signalbox and noticed that No. 7 lever was. reversed. All other
levers were normzl. 1 noticed thet certain signal repeaters
were in the "Off" position, although the levers were normal,
-and gttributed this to the obstruction caused by the debris.

I alsc moticed that the track indicetor: disgram showed preck
ciréuits "W = V* on the Dowh Road and “UM TUN. - UO™ o the

Up Line occupled. " ; _;

X Q. At what speed waa the local train running? You say
Si: Alen, & it 'was =a normal speed. . vl
A, . Roughly about 15 m, p n. - o
Q. You know this line very well?



Do you think that traeins TUANINZ OO0 LOE =1UW LU Svey

at thé station pass through about 15 m.p.h?
Yes.

This was the first time you looked round?

Yes.,

You could see the tail lamp of the train?

Yes.

How d1d you notice the passenger train in the Up
direction., How.far away was it?

l‘I cannet say whether thero were any head lights on it
or not hut~&a soon,.as I saw the two back lights on the

signals 1ooke:rgutcmaticdlLy to see somebhlng come up.

How long after the crash was it that you saw the
express passenger train approacn?

As 800D es 1 heard the” crash

How dia you realise it was”a’ pessenger traln approaching?
I thought it was as 800% BB it -hit the buffers.

What made you thlnk lt was an Up traih?

It came to me all of s sudden that there might be an
Up train because I have seen a derallment once or twice

with these buffer stops.

You say that directly this collision had taken place
with the burfer stops you looked at the Up Home signal

and you satisfied yourself that 1t was at "Danger®?

Yes.
How long after that'dfd'thé'Ub'treIn arrive?

At the same time &3 I looked I could see the express
‘céming up. ;

You saw its head lights?
No. ‘I 'saw the reflection of thc cosches.

Did you continue to watch the Up train?

- X wag watching it all the way clong, end T did not

think he was golng to stop, but he did about 6 yords from
the rear of the locul train:+ I was looking at the

sngine of the Up express and at the same time the doors
openal end a lot of passengers cdme ruaning out. At

the seme time I heard a grinding noise coming from the
south and it autometicelly came to me that it was

another train coming along. A4ll of a« sudden I saw a
black object hitting the engine.

Is it your impression that the Up express wes stationary
before the Lown express hit it?

Yes.
You were some distance sway fror it?

Yes. but I wes 1ookihg‘at the engine most of the time,



The crossover 7 pulled.,

Why were you impressed by the people getting out
of the express?

There was sO6 much excitement that some-of ‘them might
have got out before the traln came to a stand. I am not
certain whether these people got out before ‘It exactly
stopped. dead or was slightly in motion \

I do not think you could have ssen the Down express

at the time. Your attention was riveted on the Up train.

I did not sce the express coming but I ‘saw 4 dark object.

88 1t hit the Up express.

-You dla not gee the Down expreas bit the wreckage?

No. I ocould hear the grinding noise.-~

What 41d you do? ridyou go to the box?’

L Bed my wife with me at the tims and she wns in a very
had state. I rushed her home and went over to the Shop
and then went to the’ sxgnalbox.

What did you find in the Box?

 Everything was in order axcept Nb. ? lever?

A1l the signals were normal.

Nes. 10, 11, l4 and 55 were showins ~o¢r-?
The indicators were showing "orr“.
Wrongly "off".

Yés. .
Thet was due to wreckags on the wifeg?m
Yes. ; _ ‘

Are you satisfied about thaté'

Ysas, o |

You are satisfied that all the equipment was 'in arder?
Yes.' | . |

Have you tested the locking afterwards?

" No.

You would not be definite about the Up train belng at a
stand before the collision took, place?

I think it was defiqitely stopped.

That was your impreésion?

Yes. _

You had not been loocklng at the Down traln?
Bo, T was looking at the Up Express. |

What weo +ha anand af the Uv train-as -it vassed. when it



Ql
Mr.Cleaver.

"

A

Mr‘%.'.'l.aavor.

A

Mr.Q"Clea‘r,Grie..;

Tl

A.

Mf%&leaver.

L A S RN

A,
Jen
¥r.Cleaver,
A,

ﬁ%2q1q§xpr.

h.

Mr?CIeaver.

-
Mr . Moss.

the Outer BHome 'or the
Ber working lamcarreotly?

" No.

I cannot say. It was only about & coach length and
was moving very slowly. He was not going very fast
then., I thought he was golng to pass the reer em
of the local train.

Did you see the Up Express‘engine_double over?

Yes, I saw that.. That was bhe derk obJect.

You saw the ensine turn over? _

Yes.

You gay that you have been a Lineman for l4 years at
Hitchin, Hatfleld end Bernet. Does that inelude
Potters Ber?

No. I had been et Hitchin Hatfield and Barnet
beforo I went to Potters Bar,

You would be responsible for attending to any
defactive signal ut Potters Bar for how long?

14 years.

Can you remember at ani time a signalman reporting
nner Home signals at Potters

Do you remember a case where it has been reported that
both the Main Line Outer Home and Imner Home, and
similerly on the Slow line, have been toff" at

the same time?

No, never.

Would that be possible? Would the locking pemit
that?

No.

Would it not be possible that after r train passed
through the junction that the, Signalnan oould get

his points back to the stop block with the Inner Home
signal on the Slow line falling partially back to the
"on"™ position and standing, ghall I suggesat, in the

same "off" posl:.ion and thus mislead the Driver ia
seolng a Green signal?

No. It could not according to the locking.
The two Outar Homes could be %ofrfe?

Yes.
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Signal and Telegraph Inspector ¥ills was called and questioned.

"

e

A

g

Mr.Goss,
A

- When was this? ! ff?._ S

- quadrent fidting? N
- Yaso-‘ ' Y _h: L -".'.. ‘~. lll “.\;_"-...;

.- It has been suggested that there was a defective
Sir Alan.

slgnal on the Slow Iine 18 months to 2 years ago. Do
you know of any caseq . .

Yes, we had one about that time... It w:rs a graphite

-bearing experiment we’were trying out and we had it put

on the Home Signal on the Slow road. We wers trying it
out t:do-away with'eiling. We were trying to overcome
the freezing of the arms, but it d4id stick 1ln the
"*clear"” position.

ST

- . '._‘_,-‘. S

I think 1t was during tife “au tomn . I am pot quite
certain. About B years ago.: x ,

What are theas signaIS?

- .; All Upper quadrant.;r_ ;* SNV IF O EAMPRS:

-~
Lo o

When was thia experiment? Py

Abcout 2 yeara ago.. N S __ﬂ =
Lo e = o s 1,

. If 1t was & oaae or rreez;QQ{ how did 1b sbick?

It was due to the fact that the graphite had .congealed
in the casing.

I

Dig you 1eava it theref ‘iff_ﬁ“iw p IR L

No I took- 1t atraight away " We had another ona &b
Finsbury Park, but we ‘took that ou&.

Have you got any mors?

. Noj-we do- mot vant thbmi’ TN T sl

Have you had any trouble since thatone?
NOQ . . O cpete) RN
What 15 the fitting there d0w? The standard mpper

BN

P

Is it aelr oiling? e

_ No, it has to be oiled: “* '

Is it worked by wire or rod%

Pulled by wire. R
Goes back by grevity?

Yes,

How long ago is it since you hed a report of any
defect in the slgnalling at Potiers Bar®

I cannot re:sember any defect much on those, Meybe a
slight sdjustment on a ocold frosty morning,

~26~
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Q.

A

Mr.Moss.

mn

q.'
Sir

L

!&lan ]

There was no work teing done on those signals e
few days prior to this accident?

No.

We had authority to put in two additional track
circuits to cut out the gap which is at the present
time at Potters Ber and we were trying out that.

Was there any traock work on then?

No.




Signalman George Thomas Baines was then called and uvne

following Statement read;-

"I am 65 years of age. I have been in the'service
of the Company for 36 years and I have been & Signalman
for 87 years, I have been a Signalman at Potters Bar for
4 years.

I signed on duty on Sunday, February loth at 6 opie,
having had 12 hours rest since my previous turn of duty.
I am in good health and have had no recent illness, Tha
general working was quite normal prior to the mishap.
Prior to the mishap the previous train over the Up Slow
Line wes No.9¢0 Up, 7.15pm Passenger train Peterborough to
King's Cross, which paSsed my box at 10.3pm. No.95 Up
Passenger traln, 9,32pm Hatfield to King's Cross was
described to me at 1l¢0.4pm on the Up Slow Line and when I
got an indication on (UD. UE. UF) and UG track I lowered
No.1ll Up Slow Outer Home signal for the train to approach
the Inner Home s8ignal. I anticipated that the trein would
8top at the Inner Home signal which was at donger, but the
train ran pest this signal. When I saw that the train had
passed the Up Slow line Inner Home Signal at danger I
Immediately sent the obstruction danger bell signal to
Marshmoor and to Greenwood signal boxes. I then immediately
placed the Up Main Line signels to danger, these having been
pulled off at 10.7pm for the 5.0pm Express Pagsenger train
Bradford to Xing's Cross, I then placed the Down Main Line
signaels to danger, these having been pulled off at 10.5pm
for the 9.45pm Express Passenger train King's Cross to
Edinburgh. My next thought was that asa the 9,.32pm from
Hatfield had run past the Inner Home Signals, the engine
would cqllide with the buffer stops and it was with this in
mind that T decided to try to rcvorso No.?7 points with the
object of diverting the train on to the Up Moin and into
the station. wWwhen I attemptcd to-do this I was not clear
28 to the actual position of the Hatfield train, but I
thought I had e reasonable chance of making thao lever
movement and e¢ffecting the diversion. I should estimate
thet the Up Slow train was running towards the buffer stops
at approximotely the normal speced of a train running into
the station to stop, I pulled No.7 lsver right ovcr, there
was nothing really abnormal in the pull of the points. The
next thing that I saw was that the onginc had+run into the
buffer stops, It was then 10.8pm, I did not know at that
moment what had happcned to tho troin itself. I looked for

- the. Down Express which I knew would be a pproaching and saw
- that it was:just on the London side of the Innor Home signal,
~8qa far’ as I could judge. I should cstimate tho speéd of the
- Down’ Express: Passenger train at about 40 milcs per hour when
- -7 it came thromgh the station. . I did not detually sece the
"-cggino of "the - DoWn Bxpross. h;t tho coachos of tho Slow
© Pasgsngor train, ‘but I hoard n crunching noiso. I thon
- medo an immediato repert  to. Control -on tho tolophonc. I
"+ . did riot see or hsar anything of the Up EXproess Passcnger
traln Mo

You- say the train passed your box at 10. 3pm and this other

sir pl;ﬂtraln was described to you ag: lo 4pm _Where da you get

> O S O . b

these timas rrom?

. From- Marshmoor.

Do you not book in your signﬂl box? o

-_ _:YQB__ . l o . .—- s 3 . - I - .‘ ,

Where -do &bﬁ geb”these tjE§s’fqom?

From a register. ."”;*éa -



Sir

Alar Inu&llrﬁﬁk'Fou a faw questions later{h '

Did you leave it to the Signal [ad?

We have no'Signal Boye on on Sundays.

What is lo—l?

No .90 passed Marshmoor at 9.57, I passed it on to Greenwood
the forward signal box, at 10. l and the train passed
Pottere Bar at 10.3. He ocame up the Slow road,

Is that timed in the register?

Yos. th

How faat was the loeal train going?

It 1s rather difriuult to estimate the spsed but the
suburban. train wus pullod up very quiokly. :

Between 25 and 30 m.P.h.7

I do not think I should ‘be under-estimating 1f I said 20 .
You put the accident et 10.8?

Yes. . |

I nave been told ld 7. o

The obstruction Danger signul was sent at lo 7.

Therefore the accident could not have happened at 10.8.

Yes. The obstruotion-Danger signel was sent to Marshmoor
and Greemwood before the train came to the buffer stops.

Your aigneis were working properly?

Yos.

Driver Stanley Trigg was called and hie statement as rellows

was road;--

‘%I have been in the compeny's-eervice 29} years, and
have been a priver for 8% years, during which time I have
bsen’ statlened at the King's Crosse Depot. I am working in
what is known as the Metropolitan Link, having been on
that work for:approxitately ons menth.‘~ This involves
working betweef Hertford and King!s-Cross, and Weiwyn -
Garden City and King's Créss, togother” with ‘Ygcal passengsr
shunting and empty ooaoh-hbrking turns.. Prior to this I
wag for nine months in the Alexandra Palace [ink (Push
end Pull) whieh involved working betwSen Alexandra Palace
and Finsbury Park as a normal weekly roster, with occasional
Sunday turns working to Hertford and Welwyn Garden Clty.

I have -al3é ‘worked as a Fireman on Seven Royal tralns.

I signed on at-4,29pm on Sunday, 1loth February, to relieve’
the Driver of No.37 dlagrom at King's Gross andq subsequently
to work the 7.35pm King's Cross to Welwyn Garden City, the
8.50 empty coaches Welwyn Garden Clity to Hatfield, and the
0.32pm passenger Lraln Hatfield to King's Cross. had
previocusly had 286% hours rest. I am in good health and

have had no recent illness., The wsather during my tura of
duty was flne and clear. The Journey from King's Cross to
Welwyn Garden City was normsl. In the Up Qireotion_the



were left standing cn the runoing lines "

Journey was also nornal to Hatficld. The working
of the engine was norual, and we were travellihg
bunker first in the Up directlon with a lert hand
drive.

we left Hatfield at 9.52pnm., After leaving
Hatfield cn the Slow line we were stopped at the
Hatfield Advance Starting signal for approximately
twe minutes. The Red Hall signals were in the "off"
positicn, but the Marshnoor Up Slow Distant signal was
at caution. I checked the train approaching the
Marshrioor Home signal, and came almost to a stand when
I noticed both the Starting and Home signhals cone off.
The distent repeater for the Marshroor Internediate
Block Home was showing a green light. We made the
bocked stop in normal time at Brookmans Park Stetion,
We pade & morual stert from Brookmens pPark, and on
approaching the Marshmcor Interncdiate Block Hone signal
I noticed it was showing a green light. Thore were no
other lights shcwing except the gignal applicable to the
line on which I was travelling. Procecding further, I
noticed that the Potters Bar Up M=in Iine and Up Slow
Line Distant signals wsere both at caution., The Potters
Bar Up Slow Line Quter HQHQ algnal was in the nworfn
position, and'I also noticed. thpt the Up Main outer
Home signal was in tho "On" position, I should estimate
that I was travelling ot beotwecn 35 and 40 n.p.h. when
I-paSsed the Distant signal, and I shut off stean prior
to passging the Quter Home sigpal. I saw the Inner Hone
8ignals, one of which was rcd and the :wother green. I

-wag alkost certain that the Signal in the "off" pcsiticn

wag the one applicable tc the Up Slow Linoe. I had a
gcod view of the signals ss I apprceched them., AS T
passed the Inner Home signals I applied the brake ready
to teke the lead frecm the Slow Line to the Main Line,

.and to stop-in the Potters Bar Up Platfcrun. The next

thing I knew was that the c¢ngino had hit the buffer
stops, and T should estimnto that at tho time we werse
travelling at about 15 o,p.h, TI.was still applying

the brekes at the tinme when the cngine hit the stops.

My nate and I were thrown acrcss the cab, and as soon

88 we had recovered we lcocked cut and saw the headlights
of a Down passenger train conming through the staticn. .
Almost ot the sand noment wae notlcod that what appeared
tc be the firat and sccond ccaches of our train were
neross the Up Main Line and foullng the Down Main Line.
I was not sure whether the engine of the. Down Passenger .
train hed the 'steam on or not, but I ghould estimate

the speed of the train at approxinately 25 to 30 n.p.h.
The engine of the Down Passenger trajn then collided

with the coaches of our train, and the Down train shortly

efterwards cane to a stand. I then got off the footplate
and walked round the rear cf oy train when I discocvored
that an Up train was alsc invelved in the. ccllision, and

- this was 4he first’ I knew about an Up train being.

invcived. I could not say how nanpy ccaches of my train

You have been on Royal trains?

When I was firing,

'ﬁdw ;ﬁny,Rbyal train trips have you taken?

About nine, When I was firing'at Carbridge.

Quito fit cm this Jodrney?

Yes.

— A _



- Mr.poss

Q.

A
Mr.Mo8s

No celds?

No.

You were on the right-hand sidé?

Yes. |

Were you on time?

We left Hatfield about 9,52pm, about 20 minuteé late.
9,32pm is the right time=?

Yes,

wasnt't there another light on the Main?

No light at all. ‘

Why WQrefthere no other lights showing on the Main Line?
They are appiroach lzgﬁting signals end.the Main Line
slgnal is of the searchlight variety and with the spacing
between the Fast line and the Slow, it is quite possible
that he may be out of the direct beam

He was getting two colour light 51gnals, one either
side of Brookmans Park?

The approach’ 11ght1ng is parallel lighting with lights
on the Main Line and vice versa. ‘

There were. no other lights showing?

It is -quite possible that being a searchlight signal,
which is not for the line o which hu was trocvelling, he
may not notice that it was alight.

can you say what sort of length of view ydu had?

I capnot. o .
What sort of aistance? ' Three or four train lengths? .
I suppose it would be, |

About how long arter the time you hit the buffer atops

“did you go baock?

We. were 2 or 3 minutes pulling ourﬂelves together and
than we went down straight away. - .

Fireman.Leanard IEmes Dungate was ealled and the following

statament read:-

*T have been employed by the Company for 10 years,
and in the Locomotive Department for 6% years. The
whole of my time in the Locomotive Department has been
at Xing's Cross pepot. I am in good heglth, and have
suffered no recent illness. 7T signed 6n at-4.29pm on
Sunday, loth February, and afterwards worked with Driver
Trigg at King's Cross Station and subscquently on the
7.55pm passenger train King's Cross to Welwyn Gardep City.
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I had had'Z?“‘hours rest vefore signing on. We had

a normal journey down to Welwyn Garden City and back

to Hatfrleld with the empty coaches, I could nat say -
exactly what timo we left Hatfield in the Up directioﬂ
with the 2,32pm train to Xing's (Gross, but we were.late.
Hetfiocld Advance Starting signal on the Slow Line was

at danger, and we were delayed there two or threa -
minutes. I did not notice any rurther signals until

I noticed my Driver applied the bruke, and we were then
approaching Marshmoor where the Home sigmal was at danger.
We hardly stopped, as the signal came of f, and we*proceeded
on the journey. The colour light signol on the approach
side of Brookmans Park Station showed a groen light, We,
mede o normal stop at Brookmans Park Station. After we. -
left I notioced that the Marshmoor Up Slow Intergiediate .
Block Home signal was showing a green . light, 2nd I then
gtarted my firing duties, but I noticed that the Potters .
Bar Up Slow Line pistant s8ignal was in the non" position,
I left off firing the engine aftcr we had passed the-. -~
Distant signal, and I noticed that the Up Slow Line -

Quter Home signal was in the "Qff" position. The Driver
had shut off steam before we passed tho Quter Home signal,
I was then engaged in brcaking a lump-.cf ccal, but I
looked up as we werc approaching the Innerkﬁome signal
and saw that the signal for the Up Slow Line-was in the
noff" position. The priver had applied the brake before
we got to the Inner Home signel. The next thing I knew'
wes that we had collided violently with sBomae obstructicn.
I was knoocked off my balance, and as soon a3 I recovered’

I looked out on the off side of the engine, I could see

(3ir Alan)

A,
Qe

A

Sir Alan

that two or throe of the cocaches of our train were aocross
the Up Main Line and fouling the Down Main Line. Almost
1mmediately I saw a Down passcnger train coming through
the atation, and I shouted tc the Signalman. The engine
of this traln cut through the ccaches ef our train whioch
were foul of the pown Main Line. I should estimate the
spesd of the Down passenger trein at 40 to 45 m.p.h.

I then left my engine with Driver Trigg, walked rcund
our train and found an engine lying on its side. I
thought this was the engine of the Dcwn passenger traln
which had been turned over by the collision, and only
afterwards dlscovered that an Up train we.s involved in
the accidont.”

Which side. was the platform et Brookmans park?

e

The Driver's side 501ng bunker first.
pid you see the sxgn&l go to npffre .
No, it was already "Off" when I looked.

-¥You were on the left-hand side of the footplate travelling

in that dlrection?

Yos,. faoing.London.

Will ycu plszase stay s 1 haVe scme more gquestions to
ask you later. -

Passenger Guard Florence Mey Haden was then ocalled and her

statement, a8 under, was read:-

"T have bg¢en employad by the Company for nearly
three years, and have bgen a ssenger Guard for
approximtely two years cand thrsee montha., I signed
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on duty on Sunday, February loth, at 4.lopm, worked

the 4.24pm pessenger train King's Cross to Hertford

and 5,35pm Hertford to King's Cross, and the 7.35pm

King's Cross to welwyn Garden City. I camé back on

the 8,50pm cars Welwyn Garden (ity to Hatfield, and

9.52pm from Hatfield to King's Cross. I hed had 21

hours rest bvefore taking duty on the Sunday. I am in

good health and have had no recent illness.” We were
working quite Mormally. It was 9,.55pm by my watch when

we left Hatfield with the 9.32pm train, but my watch is
‘not too réliavle. wWe were delayed by signals . leaving
Hatfleld and we were preceded over the Up Slow. Lina by

the Peterborough train., We were stopped at Hatfield. .

Up Slow Advance signal. I did not see Marshmody Distant =
signal, but the Home signal was at Danger and it was. only ‘
lcwered Just hefore we got to it. We proceeded to. . -
Brookrians Park Station and made a normel stop. After
leaving Brookmans Park Stetion I was eéngeged in making _
out my Jjournal, and I d4id not see any more signals. AS
we approached Patters Bar the Driver applied the brake

and I plcked up my leamp and walked to the door, and just-
as I got to the door I felt a jolt which threw me off my -
balance, I got beok to the door and looked out on the -
left-hand side of the train. As I knew we were not in

the statien I walked over to the off side and looked out-
of the window, and the line appeared to be obstruoted
near the Bignal box. I get out of the brake and could '
hear an Up train approeching, although I could not then -
8ee it, T ren towards the approeching up train shouting
a8 T d4id so, and shewed a red light with my hand lamp. I
notloed that the brakes were being applied on the Up train,
and I should say it was a full application of the brake when
the train actually passed me on the Up Main Line, I was
very upset, and cannot rememcer clearly what happeued
afterwarda.ﬂ

Q. What was the time you 1ert Brookmans Parkf:
Sir Alan

A. 10.6 leaving quokmans Park. _
Q. Wes it & normsl application of the brake?
A.  Yes.. ) -

EPVERE

Q. Did you expeot hlm to .be prepared to go through the
srosagver? '

A I was prepared for him to run jnto the platfomm;
Q. You were in the rear of the train?
A. Yes,

Q. How long after was it that this Up train approgohed .
after the acclildent oocurred? About 2 seoonds?‘

A. Yes, I should think it would be. It was as soon 88 T
looked out of the window.

Q. How far do you think you were able to go up the line?
A. I am sorry I have-got'no idea, |
Q. I supposSe you ran?

A, I ran as fast as I ocould.



Qe Havs, you got any idee what the speed was when you ran
into the bhuffer stops?

A. I am Sorry I cannot estimate that.

You have the satisfaction of knowing that your red
light was seen. by the Driver of the Up traln,

{
H
L‘
-
Pl
=]

A. I did not know that.

Q- When you felt the brakes being applied you picked your
lamp up to go to the door. Did you think that you were
Just about to enter Potters Bar station?

A, Yes. A8 we run into the station I go to the door.

The first think you knew that something difrerent was
cceurring was when you felt tho bump?

A. Yos, and I got down from the van at once,

Q. Did the train pass you? How much of the train passed
you? Can you rempembsr that? How many coaches?

A. I really could not say. I just got out of the wey.

Passenger guerd Wilfred Johnffélling was oalled and questioned:-

Q. You were the Guard of the Down Expreas - 9. 45pm from
King's Crosas, ,

A, Yes,

Qe How o0ld are you?

A. My age was 62 laét February.
Q. How many years service? -
A, 47 years.

Qe You left Xing's Cross nnd were approaching Pottérs Bar.
What speed wers you itravelling approaohing Potters par?

A. About 45 m,p.h. or just over that.
S5ir Alan I want you to tell me Just what happened.

A. Just as we got.out:of the tunnel I went out to shut my
vestibule door arnd just came back when I went right on
my back when we struck the obstruction. I picked myselfl
up and I went on my baock again, T picked myself up and
went on my baeck agaln - three times. I looked at his -
brake and he still had 20, and I locoked at the Steam
heater and he still had 20 on. It appears that owing
to the Driver hitting the obstructlion he couldn't get
at his brake and, of ocourse, it gave my train a:good’

. jJerking and that was how the casualtlses in my train
were hardly anything at all,

by

Q. Did you go up to tho “front first?

I got down and went out to the signal box first and then
up the front.

Q. pld you have a word with the Driver?



A. No. The first person I met was a lady coming down
from the steps. I said "What has happened", and she
sald '"You have run into' a traln that has been derailedr.
Q. What is the normal speed,
The normel speed is about 45 mph. - We.only had 13 on.

Q. You are sure that you were knocked down on your back
threc timeg?

A. Yes, by the rebound of the train. It was hot a sudden
stop. ’

Qe How had he still got 207

He did not apply his braoke immediately as he was unable:
to do so. :

Qe Did the Driver tell you this?

Yes. He said that when he was thrown out of his
position ha“could not get over to his brake.

Qs There were no pipes came apart nor the steam pipes
came apart?

A. There was e division between the first oocach and the
tender. That was when he came to a standstill.

Qe You think the Up train ooming in induced the tender
to go up and the first coach to go up?

A I could not say anything about the Up train.

Q. Did you notice your gauge go?
Mr.Musgrave,

A. Yes. Straight down. I had my full 20 when I pioked
ryself up-the third time. A4s I was walking over there
was a gudden application, ' h

Thevfallowing questions were then asked Signalman Colin Willis:-
Q.  How old are you? .
Sir Aldn - ' “
A. Age 23
Qe When did you oammanoa with the Railway company?
A. 1938, ', o
Q. What was the first train on the Up Slow?

A. No.95 Up was stopped at my home board on acoount of
No.90 belng in front of Ahim.

Q. Which do'you ‘call your homs board?

A. The onc outside my box. No.95 was cigéked there on
account of No.90 in front. e went»qualght up the
Slow to Potters Bar.

Qe How did you know he was there?

A By the treck circult.



o

»oo

Doses UA held 27 You checked him at 29
Yes,.
You did not pull off 2?2

I pullad off when he was clear. 3 was cleared by
the time I pulled 2 off.

Did you have to operete these Brookmans Park signels?
Yes.

one lever?

Yes, one lever-Green for the Sidw road.

Did they go Green straight away?

Yes.

On this oeccasion?

Yes, for the train coneerned. 7T could not pull off
until No,90 had cleared Potters Bar. At least T did
not pull off until he had gone out on fhe Slow and
the Slow road was clear: A

Then what happened?

He was on.the.block to Potters Bar, he was accepted

and went up the slow to Potters Bar.

Ihen did you get obstruction Danger° :H

I recelved six bellg at 10.7 from Potters par.
Clock right? |

Yes. ‘

Whan was ﬁhe ¢look cheoked?

Satqrdaf morning about 10 6'clock.

Did you speak to the Signalman? |

T-had just been in oonversatlon with him and told
him where the Up expreas was and apparently he pulled
off for 1it.

When did you get the express on?

10.4.

"Did you speak’ to him after that?

No. o

When did you spéak to Baines?

I spoke to him when I got on for the expresas.
whgt were you talking to Bainea about? -

I think it was to ask him if he was going to rux it
on the Slow road or if he was holding it for the express.
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A

Q.

Q.
A,

Mr, Moés
A.

Sir Af&n
A,

what did he say?

He said he was going to hold it for 92 and he would
run it after g2.

22 belng what?
The Grimsby express.

You got the Obstruction panger at 10.7. Did you
speak to the Signalman aftcr that?

He celled me up and said what had happened after I
had received the six bells.

What did he say?

2%5 Down had come into collisicn and that was all ...

.he said

That was at 10.7.
Yes, after he had given me the 9ix bells for fhe
obstruction.

Previous %o that at 10.4 you had had a conversatlon
with him., Tell me about tRat?

I called him up and No.90 passenger was iln the Slow
road, that was the one before 95. I askad him if he
wes runnlng No.90 before or after the expresa. He
said T will let 1t follow No.92 express, that is the
Grimsby traln. In the meantime No,90 had cleared my
traok on the Up Slow road. When he cleared this traok
I oleared for No.95 and he went up to the autos and at
10.4 it left the autos.

Yyou had no conversation with paines about what you
would do with No.95 like you Lad with No.90?

No, I had already accepted one on the Main Line and
the intention was to lzt the express go and lat the
slow paasenger go on the Slow road.

‘v

Would you have otherwise diverted the train via
Brookmans Park?

If I hed found out what was goilng Main Line I should
probably have direoted him out.

Is the discretion left entirely wlth you?
It is between Potters Bar and myself.

95 left the autos at 10.4pm, that was the 9.32pm.
Was that train stopped at that signal? A

It was not stopped. Just as it got there the track
via3d cleared.and the signal was pulled off and it got
a Green to go into the Slow rowd. He was slowed there.
Can you toll where he was?

You cannot tell because it is =ll track workKing. Not
unless he was standing at the autos.
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Lir.

Q. . Unless the traek is occupied for a minute or so, yow
cannot tell. <You did not mean to convey that he had
besn stopped?

.A.,O Nol

Q. You merely mean that he left that track?
A. Yes,

Q. when do you pull off that auto signal for a passengef
train? 1Is the lever looked?

A. It i3 locked right through to the Innex Home at Potters Bar.

Moes O cantot pull it off until ho sces that the -
track circuits are clear. You cannot pull off that
8ignal No.4 until the treck circuit UD. UE. UF. and UG.
are oleared.

Q. You recelved si“ bells from Potters Bar. what time
was that? ] ' '

A. 10.7.

Q. Your records show 8igns or having been altered Why '
is that?

A. I do not think so. ‘
Q. Why did you alter it from 10.9 to 10.7%

A. Because I was busy at the time and I looked at the
slock.

Q. You 4did enter 10.9%

A. I did enter 10.9, but on looking at the clock for
the saecond time I saw it was 10.7. -

Q- I you entersd the time at (l0. 9{5 did you alter it
at once? \

A. Yes, I altered it at the time,
Q. I suppose the six bells surprised you?
A. It aid for the minutéel

Q. You had to write in six bells suddenly, you had got
10.8 just abo"\'re. what are those figurea?

A, Pagsenger train coming down the Slow road, Potters
Bar to Hatfield 10.1 to 10,.8.

Q. You enteréd that 10.8 correctly. The next moment
you put in six bells and is that what made you write
10.9?

A. Yes, because I probably did not enter 10.8 when the
train went by. I had done sll the others.

Qe The 10.8 passed you after you got the six bells?

A. It would be passing at the sdme tlme or abouthalfl a
minute efter.

Q. You are satisfisd that 10.9 was 10.7?

“n yes. s .



Q- When was your clock chbecked?

A. It should have been checkod 10 o'clock Saturday morning.

Signelnan Earold Stanley Colbert was then called and questioned
ag under:- '

Q. What do you know of this nccident?
Sir Alan ' '
" A. Nothing at all,
Qe When did you get the (Qbstruction Dangsr?
A. I got six bells from Potters Bar at 10.1ll.
Qe When was your clock last checked?
A I could not say, but it spould_be‘in the book.

. The clock had not been oheokad.fbr days. Do you
Mr.Green remember checking your clock?

A It wae when I was on early turn, 10 otcloock,

Q. How 4id you enter this 10.117
Sir Alan e

A. I can tell you exactly how this altsration came
about. Originally I booked 10,1l. Then Signalman
Baines asked me what time he gave me s8ix bells.

Q. When diGISignalman Baines ring you up?

A, Some time afterwerds.

Qe How long?

A. Up to 1@ -minutes or a ouartef of an hour.

Q. He rang you up and asked you what time he gave you
the six bells?

A. I said 10,11. He said it was berora'that. I .said
it might have been a minute before that, but he said
1t was 10.8. I altered my figure while I was talking
"to him on the telephone into 1¢.8., and afterwards I
was thinking that my original figure was correot, so I
altered it baeck to 10.11., It might have been a mistake =~
half a minute or a minputs previous. As socon as I got
the 8ix bells my first thing to do was to put my signals
back for the following express, No,237 - the 9.55 out -
and put three detonators on the lipe, and in doing that
I tripped over some wires and went sprawling. By the
time I got up I cannot be certain withip aiminute.

Qe pid fbu get your detonmators down?
A, Yes.

Qe Did you stop the train§

A, Yes.
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Qe
A,

Where?
It stopped at my Home signal.
Did it explode the detonators?

No. Rétually there was no hurry so far as I went,
begause I had not got On Lime, but you can never tell.

What train was that?

No.25%7, the 9.55 out.

Following the 9,457

Yes.

At what speed did the 9,45 pass you?

Well, T should scy somewherse about 45 to 50 m.p.h.

Norm~l?

Pernaps not so fast as normel; it did not pass me

until 1p.7 end it should heve passed at 10.2. By
my booking it was 10.7 and if the train had been
running to time it should have been lo 2.

You did not know how fast your clock was?

No. '

Your clook was fast, evidently?

Yed,

What time was the accident?

10.7.

r.Johason

Q.

Sir Aan__

A.
Colbert

Q.

A,
Sir Alan

Mr.Groeon

Sir Alan

It passed you at 10.7%

Yes,

What 1s the running time between you and potters
Bar for that train?

3 - 3% - 4 minutes.

It looks as though your olock was three or four
minutes fast. -

It does not work on the proevious entries like that.

Have them examined, and let me know what the result is.
Have the three boxos checked right through on the times
and tell us what the facts are.

Mr. Johnson The express was three minutes late from King's Gross.

9ir aAlan

Mr.Green

It is suggested that according to the Potters par
Signalman the aceident was 10.7, yet this Signalman

says it possed him at 10.7, and he is three minutes away.
Did you book the train as it passed you?
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A. Yes, I got the Is Line Clear at 9.54, On Line from
Colbert Barnet North at 1p.5. I ~ave Potters Bar the
describing signal at 10.7 and gave Qut of Section
vo Barpnet North at 10.7.

Q. Were you putting that in as thé train pasbed?
Sir plean . ' S - '
A. Yes, witnin half a mirute I had reported it to -
Centrol, and I had already booked it. then.

G You rerorted it normally before thz accldent happened,
to Conbrol°

A. Yes.

Sir Alan That can be checked by ths report of Control. Then
we mu8t c¢heck Bainesr -book. :

{Sir Alan looked at the Train Register.Book).

Q. When Baines rang you up regarding the time he gave
Mr.Goss you six bells, there is no suggestion, I teke it,
that he was asking you to enter a partlcular time in
your Train Book?

A. oh, no,

] He Jjust wanted to check his own time?
Mr.Goss -

A. Yes, I expect so.
Sir Alan Yes, that is all righ%-

I do not think there i3 anything mcre. I think we
can close the public part of this Enquiry.

I want to ask kr. Burtoa one or two things.

¥hat about this cend drag. Lr. Barton? Why cannot

we put in a send drag? .
Mr.Barton There is no room at preSOnt,‘ﬁnless-the Superintendent

says he never wants to put an engine there out of the

way.

Mr.Johnson We ;do, (Mr. Johnson explalned the working to Sir
Alan Mount on the plan, and the runct1¢n of the spur).

Mr.bBarton I suggest it aocts as a dual funotlon. ' We have many
more like that, T :

Sir Alan The Great Weéstern put in a sand drag after onhe of
their accidents. I got them to do 1it.

Mr.Barton There would not be a platform 8t the immediate
end of it?

oo II"
o

Sir A¥an Nm therﬁ was not.

what, then, is the deduction to be érawn from this?
.That his clock was very badly wroag?

Mr.Goss If you check the times of the Marshmoor and Potters
.. Bar books, I think that is a clear. indication that
a8 far as Greenwaod is’ concerned he must have been
well out for time.

e 4Y



Sir Alan

vr.Green

Siyv Alan

I8 Baines all right with his 1p0.7¢

I do not know., These men get six bells, acnd it
may have been 2 few minutes loter.

Ycs., It comes to this time log in entsring up

books. If you are too busy and have to enter up
books a 1little bit late it Jjust cttches you.
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signalman George Thomas Baines was recalled and

agked the following questions ;=

Q.
Sir Alan

A

Qs
A.

Q.

Mr.
Gresn
Sir Alan
Baines-

Mr.Green

e Qe
“Sir Alan-
A.

Qc.

A

You have been very definite about your times here
in your evidence - "The Peterborough - King's Cross
train passed my box at 40- 3. "

Yes, sir, from the Slow Road.

Is that entered up at the time?

Yes.,

‘When was your clock last chedked?

At 7-50 on the same'night.‘_ I put it back 2§ minutes.

2 -

Did you do it yourself? | RS .

Yes, I had.been on with Control-é4s to the correct
tima, Qur clock, when 1t wants winding up, always
galns, and I asked what was the -time, and I sald my
time was corrected by 2% minutes, as will be seen in
the block book, which is here now.

Why d1d you do it then?  Any reason?
Woll, I always check it up on a Sunday night to see

what time it 1s, because sometimes we get our leg
pulled. When you are sending on a train they say

._"why do you not get a decent clock™?

.Ygu are satisfled that your clock was right time?

Yeé; sir.

You checked it at 7, and you are satisfied all the
timgs you have in your book are correct?

He made the sntry at 7-50, and there is no doubt about
it. That clock does go wrong'on a Sunday night.

It hasg- been mentioned to me that the clock stopped

‘after ‘the accident.

Yes, that 1s correot, sir.“

When I walked up in the box the clock was 10-10%, and

it stoppad there.

wny did 1t do that?

Because a ploce of wood was knocked off which covers
the wiring dnd it xnocked the clock on one side and
stoppeod it, for the pendulum was not going equally.

- Then the Greenwood signalman tells me that you rang

him up sometime after the accident to eheck his time?

| Yes, sir.
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». Johnson,

B3aines

Mr.Green.

Sir Alan.

He puts down 40-11 as the time of your "Obstruction
Danger" signal. What was the time of your "Obstruction
Danger" signal? : : _ |

10~ 7§om. May I ask, sir, what time the Gieenwood
signalman gave me the describing signal for 255 Down,
the 9-45 out?

10"' 70

I have got 10- 5, so that would equalise it out.
It shows there 18 a2 two minutes difference. '

I have analysed in that book since 7-50 the difference
in times between Greenwcod for all entries, and you
will seo there 1s a variation of time of two minutes
in the traine, but there are four minutes in tnis

six bells signal.

. And Greenwood is saying six bells came two minutes later?

Mr.Johnaon.He i9 maying four minutes later - that 1s Signalman

Sir Alan.

\

A.
Qe

-8ignals.

Bailnes' suggestion.

Let me have a note about that. Have the books
analysed. In your evidence, Baines, you say "The
next thing I -saw was the engine had run into the
buffer stops. It was then 10- ap.m " why did you
send "Obstruction Danger" signal at 10~ 7p.m.. if the
ac¢ident had not happened?

Because I could not avoid the No.95 Up, thet is the
0-32 from Hatfield, running into the stop blocks
unliess there was any possible hope of my getting it
out on to the Main Line,

But why '"the next thing I saw was the train was running
intoBthe buffer stops" - you put the accident then, at
10~ 82 - . . .

Yes, sir.

Your accident time is 40- 8, yet you send the
"Obstruction Danger" signel at 40-7, and it seems to

me that 1t i1s against yourseli, Here 1is the Greenwood
signalman saying you sent it at 410-11, leas 2, it might

.have baen 16=- 9, I cannot understand L minutea out,

and why are you suggesting that you aent this
"Obatruction Danger" signal se soon?

I thought there was some danger elae I would not have
sent it. I sent it both to Marshmoor and to Greenwood
when. I aaw that the paaaanger train had over-run his

Before the collision took place? Béfore he collided

- with the hurfer stops?

Oh, yes, sir, I think I wee justificd in that.

Yes. When did you realiee this train was running past
your Inner Home signal?

I realised that the train was running past my Inner
Home gignal when I sew 1t approaching past the Inner
Home.



A.

Qe

A,

Qe

QI

A

e

That Inner Homé is about } mile away.  You could not
tell, could you? It might probably have been nearer.

I won' t suggest it was nearcr than that before I saw it.
We have got o diagram stuck in front of us, and I was
probably looking back for the Down EXpress. Then,
casting my oye back I saw that tho train had ovér-run,
his signals. Then I séent the "Obetruction Danger"
signal. - L TR

" You had a previous train on this Slow, and you say it

passed. you at 10- 3.

That is correct,

pid you immediately put back the crossover? "
Certeinly, sir. N
No doubt about 11?2

No, one" does that automatically.

Did you put back the signei?-

Yee, eir.

L .

'When 'did you pull off fer the Up Exprees?

At 10— 'R acoording to my book.

Well, thén,’ where would the Up express have been when
you pulled off?

According to the running of tﬁé"trein,.may I say in
passing that the Up train must hdve been moving very
quickly, it wae two minutes from Hatfield, and two
minutes to come into the Obstruction.

where do you get that from?

I got” that from Marehmoor.,; Marstimoor told me he was
running very well, Lo

You say you pulled nff for the Up express at 10~ 7, that
is in your book. When would thsat have happened?
Where would that train have been when you did that?

This traln would have passed my Outer Distant, snd he
wqule not be far away from my Distant signals.

What was in front of-him on the Up?
Nothing on the Up, 'sir. o

surely your working is such that the Distant signal 1s
not lowered just in front of a treain, but well in front.

The Dieﬁant'eignel was lowered at 10- 7.

Where, in the course of your experience, wae that train?
It Was.within sight of the Distant eignal?

We get -the desoridbing signal from Marshmoor. This
was really 10— 6&, but by my clock 10- 7.



Qe And you think it was gpproaching or passing Marsnmoor
: then? . C0 -

A It would haﬁe passed Marshmédr'then.zi'

Q. It is Marshmoor 8 entering aection signal?

A Yes, sir. |
"Q.'. As the train enters the section he dcscribes to you?
A Yes. ; - B SR
Qe Marshmoor 1s how far away.irnhlﬁénrhﬁon? Three miles
) is it not? The train entered your section - %

A. boing say 50 or 60.. . .

Q. Well, 60 haas not been mentioned, but even 60, three
minutes away.

A He would get my Outer Distant.
Sir Alam, You pulled off for this train, all your signals, and it

was three miles away. .. That is three minuteg. He had
at least 1g minutes to run bhafore he saw your Distant
signal.

Mr. Mosse. He is referring to. the OQuter Distant. That wpuld be
at double yellow or green, and is the same signal as the
Up Main Intermediate Bleock: Heme. . '

Sir Alan. I understand, this describing signal which Baines
received at 10- 7, was tranamitied by Marshmoor to
Potters Bar at 10- 6.

Mr. Goss,. That w&a ‘the train passing Marshmoor, and the train
S . 1s, then. three miles away, .and Baines says he received
that, signal at 10- 7. - He-.pulled off for it.

Mr. Moss. The signalman also said the train would get a sight of
his Outer Distant

Sir nlan.' Is that ocne of your doubla yellows? W

;Mr. Hoss.\ Yes-;a.-:- o

Mr~Claamer.If the. Main Line signal i8 at green, the Driver is
right away from Potters Bar on the Main Line only, but
not on the Slow Line.-, . : v

Mr, Moss; He gats a green on the Slow Line and he is clear to the
Inner Home, - S

Sir Alan. Mr. Moss, will you give me a note of. this.
Mr. . Hoaa. The. Quter: and Inner Home' gignals are proved ae having
- been replascd behind a teein before the Intermediate
Block Home sigunal will go to green.
Mr.Cleaver.He has a semapnore Dlstant folloving that green similar
- to.the Main Line only the reading of the two green colour

- dights is different insofar as 4if he gets & green on the
Slow Line he must be prepared to stop at the Outer Home.

<
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Sir AIan. That does not alter the times of Signalman Baines.
At 10- 7 Mr. Moss, he pulled off, and that trdin
wag three miles away. _

Mr. Moss. Yes,

Sir Alan. Then when did you say the accident happened, at 10- 82

Il

Baines Yes. -

Sir Alan. * Thig is proof that the Down train arrived at 10- 8
and the collision occurred immediately afterwards. Is
that right?

Baines Yes, sir.
Sir Alan. The Up express wae still approaching, and was half way
through his three miles to get here, and I think that
is fairly proof positive that the Up express arrived
quite sometime¢ afterwards -~ after the collidgion had

occurrcd.
Baines will you allow for the half minute that I spoke of?
~ As I said befpre, the describing signal was 10- 6%, I
make 1t 10- 7.  In that half minuie hc.could get a

long way if the train was going 60 m.p.h.
Sir Alan.  You could get half &a mile. | o L

Baines But if I might make a suggestion, that this train was
going over 60 m.p.h.?

Mr. Goss. On the guestion of times, I was just wondering whether
thet would apply to the time for the "Qbstruction
Danger" signal, whether it was 10- 7% end . he puts.
10- 7 for it. I

Sir Alan.  Why were you so keen to get this. "Obstruction Danger"
eignal checked?

Baines '}t Because I was ‘anxious to get.e correct book. I knew
that 1f any accident occurred there would be a Company's
Enquiry and also a Board of Trade.

Mr.Cleaver, The accident had occurred.
Baines - ° “Thebe was no ulterior motive in my mind.

Sir Alan. No, I am sure there was not

r

Bailnes. it wad 51mp1y fdr checking, sfr. We do check now and
again, one with anothers L o

Mr. Goss.’ "1 think.yog,cepaexpect that as-being a normal action.

Mr. Green. Might I ask if bhe checked with Marshmoor as well as
Greenwood?

Baines Yes, sir. I do not think I am a long wsay out with
Marshmoor.

Sir Alan, You got the other chap so excited that he altered his
~time to 10- 8 and altered it back to 10-11,

Baines I was in the midst of 1it, 51r, and I did not get excited.



Qs

Q.
A,

Q.

A,
Sir Alan.

Bainas

Sir Alon.

‘There must have been & long time - 10~ 7!

We know that you pulled off for the express at 10- 7.
When did you throw back your signals, at 10- 8?

No, they would be put back before that

Did you say the accident happened at 10— 8%

.Yeo. As soon as ever I sent the "Obstruction Danger"

signal I rushed back to the Up Main and put them back..
Then the Quter track, (UM, N and 0) was occupiled. The

"first indication was occupied and the second indication
wag not occupied. _ .

Wwhat does that mean? Had he passed ths Diotaﬂt slgnal®

Yes, s8ir, he would have passed the Outer Distant when

- that light is up.

That was when you put the signels back to danger?

Yes, s8lr.

You put them baok later than one would iﬁagine?

I put thém back as soon as possible.  I:sent the
"Obstrugtion Danger"; I rushed back to these signals
and put them back. He was then 6n (UM, W,.0) indication,
but U0 was not 1lit up, therefore he was outside the
Quter Home. .

Yes, wec have been told by & Firoman that he saw the Inner
Home go to danger; but he passed the Quter Home at clear?

Yes.

‘Well, T .do not agree with thot sir, I know definitely,

I em positively sure that (UM, N, O) only was 1it up.

But the Distant signal - he might have passed or might
not have passed the Digtant signal. You had to put

back the Outer Home 11? : .

Yea, sir.

Iouqhadntokput‘béck the bar 4, and pull the..crossover?

- Yes.

You were too late in pulling the croasover?

Yes, that is right sir.

"You pulled the crossover, hoping thot you would pull it

in timo?

-

Yes, sir.

You missed it by a few geconds?

-BY about half g second sir.

I am trying to make up ny mind whether yvou were justifiled
in doing that. This was at night, "and you could not
tell where the train was.



Baines

Will you allow me, sir, to give my definition of 1%?
The reason why I was trying to get the 9-32 from . -

Hatfleld out was in the hope that the Driver of the

sir Alan.

Baines

sir Alan.

first part of 94 Up would see the signals go back in

time, and pull up before entering the station, where
95 would be.

Yes, you would have effected that.
That was my intention, sir.
And you very nearly pulled it off. But you were too

late, and I am trying to think - you could have acted,
I think, some time before. That is my.trouble. - You

" pulled off at 10~ 7, the train was thon three miles

Baines

Sir Alan,

Baines

Qe

Q..
Ay

Qe

Qe
A,

Sir Alen.

away, the accident happened at 10- 8, and you had two
minutes in which to do it.

I had to go back to the other end of the box and put tha
"Down Main Line signals at danger as well, and then run

back again.

No - it was all oter at 10- 8, The Down train came
in under clear signals, and practically as the collision

. happened, practigally as he ran into the buffer stops.

It was only a few seconds after that.

: f .
I do remember, sir, the Down signals being put baock to
dangere. I know well he passed the Distant signal: at
Green. He had also passed the Outer Home at green,
I am no't positive of  the Inner Home.

The Inner Home is opposite your box?

No, sir, 1t i1s on the south side of the station.

. The Driver of the Down train did'mot see the Starter?
" No. |

' .Hé hds-said tbat he péssed‘the Inner Home at green, but

ho did not see the Starter, and I think you may take it
that the Down train came in under full steam. He had

the regulator on. ~You put the accident &t 10- 8,

The collision with the Down train waes immediately efter
the buffer stops had bgen hit?

Yes, sir. He was the first one to go into the debris,

Would you like to call it 10 seconds? 20 seconda?
Wes 1t & minute? ' )

No, sir.
Not half a minute?

No, sir,

,Therefore the collision 'with the buffer stops and the

collision with the Down train occurred at 10- 8, and
you had pulled off for the Up traln at 10- 7 - a
minute before, and that Up train was theny the best part
of two miles away from you, It looks tﬂ/me as though

- you had a couple of minutes in which to/fact and to pull

over that crossover. It was most unfortunate that you
did not get it over just in time.



Baines | Yes, I regret that, sir.

Sir Alan. You thought you were doing it Jjust as. quickly éé you
could. I think you had a 1ittle more time than you
thought. ' : .

Baines I want to point out most emphatically that when I put
my signals to danger on the Up Main the only indication
was on (UM, N, 0). Therefore he had already passed the
Inner Distant, and he very probably could see the
indication on the Outer Home.

Mr. Moss. I do not so€ how he would know that sir. You cannot
"tell tho position of & train by that indicator going
occupied. It goes right back to the Quter Home, 200
vards away. . L

Sir Alan. Did not the Fireman of that train say he got the green
. at the Outer Distant?

Baines Yes, sgir. I quite agree with that, He very probably
would get a grecn at the Inner Distant. L -

Sir Alan. If tho accident happened at 10- 8 I should have.hoped
"7 "that you put the signals back quickly enough for him
to get a red at the Outer Distant.

L -
P

Mr,Mose. No, double yeollow, sir.

Mr.Barton.iWould he not hegitate & bit wandering whether he was
going to pull the express up?

Sir Alan. Yes, I am surc he wouvld.

Baines The oniy thipg I can - say 1s that the'signals here put
_back to danger as quickly as humanly possible, afte®
I saw the train nad passed the Inner Home at danger.

Sir Alan. Is that the right method of operation on the Slow Line?
How do you know you aio not leave the Outer Home on the
Slow Line off? ' )

Balnes Itcould not have been done, sir, técause I .should have
. to put NO|11 and NOCLI- b\BCkO -t :

Q. " To get tho crossover normal?

A, . Yasa.

Q Aftsr Jou operatea No.90 train which you had, youw had
to put the crogsover back to normal to pull off for the
Up Main? .

A Yes, sgir.

Qe You pulled off for the Up Main at 40~ 7% And the
previous train had been over there at 10~ 3% You

had plenty of time - 4 minutes - no question of your
leaving off the Outer Home?

Al NO’ Sil‘- -
Qe You dié not change: your mind or anything like that?

A. ‘"No, sir.



A

Qe

Qe
A,
Q.
A,

Mr.Goes.

Q.
S5ir Alan.

Qe
A

Qe

Qe

A,

"But you. knew the engine had come to grief?

You were not glving preference to this local train in
front of the express?

oh, no, sir.r
In fact you could not have pulled off for it?

No, sir, mechaniCallJ locked. At leaat, the Inner
Home wouid be. : , ‘

Well, theil,: according to ‘your statement which _you made,
you were under the impression:that the Up train had
been stopped? N .

Yea, I was patting myself on the back and thinking I
had done one good job tonight anyway.

When did you hear the Up express had come ‘into it?
Later in the evening, sir. I knew the Up exPress had"

crashed. No one told me it had crashed, but I knew
very ‘well that it was in the viecinity, er should have

been on account of the tracks being 1it up. . SR

e

Did you not hcar the collision? ‘
Nd,"éir, there was no noise. Not‘ﬁith the Up oXpress.
What steps did you take to ascertain what had happened?

Mr. Dickinson whc lives at the station House, he cameg
out almost immediately and had a look roynd ; ahd he s4id
what had happoncd. o . ,

You knew withir, "¢ uwinates Lnen?
Yes;
Then how did ail this sturf get into the Press®?

I am not prepared to say that, sir, that is out of my
jurisdiction. - B

Reporters have a wonderful sense of imagination.

You have Just told me you thought you stopped the Up
exXpress. -You .could only have been under. that
misapprehension for about 410 minutes after thc accident..
You must have been one of "the first to know what the
facts were.,- .

T- qould not 5¢e tho first part of 9& through the debris
which was in front of my view.

But you were told u!.thin 10 minutea‘?
I do not know who by.
Yeu, but I do not know who 1t was that told me.

How doegs it get =zbout that the Up express khad been
hrought tc a stand clear of the aceldent?

I have no knowledge of that, I think you will have to
leave me out of that.



Mr. Goss.

Ql
Mr.Cleaver.
Beinesg

Mr.Claaver,

A
Mr.Cleaveor.
A

Mr.Cleavers

Mr.Cleaver.

A.

Mr.Cleafar.

A.
Mr.Cloaysr,
A,
lr.Cleaver,
A

Mz ,Cleavar.

A.

Mr.Cleaver,

Sir Alen.

Mr.Cleavar.

‘"I could not estimate any spsed.

On the day of the accident I heard thres different
stories when I walked into the station yard.

Could you tell me what was the speed of the local
train?

I should estimate the speed of the locel ctralin tefore
1t came into the buffer stODPT cveevesssess

How could you tell 1t had paseed your signal at
danger?

Because 1t kept going.
You had no instrument to indicate that?

No.

What would be the speed of the train when he passed
your signal, when you made up your mind he was running

away?

I should put it down as the general speged of a local
passonger train coming into the station and doing its
worko

You could not determine whether he was doing LO or 10
only from the nolse?

The only speed I
could give would be as the gpesed of a local train
coming to stand in the station.

How did you determine hc had passed the Inner Home
signal?

Bocause I saw the light on the front of the engine.
Was he carrying one or two lights?
One light.

Have you ever had other engines pass that signal,
coal trains, goods trains, etc., unable to stop?
No, thank God, I have not.

Would it be quite possible that this Driver may have

had some difficulty with his brake and may have
passed your signal two or three coach lengths?

That 1s out of my Jjurisdiction,

You are a signalman of considerable experience and you
know that Drivers do sometimes pass signals owing fto
some defect on the engine or error of judgment.

Whet determined you to glve six bells when a train was
on a right line, running into a safiety device to
protect the Main Line?

He gave the runaway signal anticipating the collision
with the dead end, and he did that because he thought
the Up Main Line was golng to be fouled in
consequence.

-

On the other hand therc is a possibility that the Driver

was having soma difriculty within 20 or 30 yarus of
the stop.



Sir Alan.

Mr.Glesaver.

Mr. Green.

Mr. Cleaver.

Mr. Goss.
gir Alan.
Baines

sir Alan.’

Mr. Cleaver.

Baines

Mr.

Baines
Mx .,
‘Baines
Mr. Cleaver,
Bainesg

Mr. Cleavar.

Baines
Mr. Cleaver.
Balnes

Mr.

2aines

Johnson.”
"~ ‘months ago'you did have thede stops knocked down

Johnson.’

NQr.

Cleaverr

I know, Mr. Cleaver; I think if the Signalman
thought this man was going to over—run and collide
with the buffer stops he would be-eriticised for

‘not sending six belils if :-he thought the line was

going to 56 obstructed .~ﬂ s -
Except that it is not in accordance with the
regulations. You only send six belle ‘when the
line is obstructed. - v

1

If you have a train enterlng your "section, for
which you have not received the "Is Line Clear" or

-“"Train Enterzng~Section“ yeu send eix ‘bells.

If the §ignalman observes that a Driver is braeking

‘and c#n see’the Driver is.going to stop-within 60

yards past on the wrong ‘slde of thé signal, he would
not give 8ix bells.

,He could not see he was braking. .

Did you know the Drivcr was braking?

No, sir,

‘He realised the Driver was passing the gtop signal

at danger. _ _
The Driver having the aesumption that he ‘had got the

‘road and was going into the station.

The only thing I can say is that I am sure that he

. had run past his boarde.

Is it not 'a ‘fatt that’ ebout rathcr less than twelve
by some wagone, and they did foul the Up Main Line?
Yes.'

Poeeibly you had that in mind?

Yeg.

You were on duty then?

You do not know if the englne paseed the signal at

: danger on that-cocaeion?

.....

'™ L H """"L. vl

‘Do ‘you reméfmber Bny accident where a Driver has

passed the signal d run into the stop blocks when

the sigral has been’shcﬁﬁng grean?

- I .
< PRI SO

NO-V - "
You havé not beard from'apy of your mates in the box?

Noyv

ey o



Mr, Goes.

' The point I would like to bring out so far as the

Signalman 1s concerned 1s that 1t was not his Job
to worry or anticipate whet the Driver had got in

" mind, but to take some action on what he found.

Mr. Davies.

MI‘. B&I‘ton.
Sir Alan.

Mr. DaV1és.

Sir Alan.

Balines
sir Alan.

Mr. Johneon
Sir Alano

Mr.Musgrave.

Mr. Daviesi

Mr. Goss.

Nr. Green.

Sir Alang

Baines

Sir Alapo_ o

A&einss

- Another thing is that if the train had besn going

at 15 m.p.h. between the Inner Home signals and the
facing connection, he only has 3 minute to make up
his mind.

If it had been golng at 20 m.p.h. he would wuuly
have & few Beconds.

The spead. I imagine, at which the train hit the
buffer stops.

b4 ahould think 25 to 30 mypeh.’

iIs that normal speed for a train entering the
platform?

That is rathar fast.
Ia there a restriction over this orossgver?

‘There 1s & 10 m.p.h. rastriotion over this -
srossover.

I am.very anxioua to hear what Trigg has got to
B&Y. ..

I undgrstood Baines to say that the Up train took
two minutes to Marshmoor and two minutes Marshmoor
tg the obstruction. I 4o not think he 1s correct
there. - . : ' : g

‘HEYf161d to Potters Bar is 4 miles.

I think you have ot to pay some regard to the half
minute business. He glves half a minute one way
with one trailn; ‘he may give gnother train half a
minute in anather way.

I wonder if he means Red Hall rather than Hatficld.
It 13 two minutes from pasaing Red Hall box in rear.
Perhaps 1t is Red Hsll he has in mind, not Hatfield.

I think it 1s only gignalman Baines trying ta

- streas how: fast thj.a train wis going.

I only wanted to suggost hs was going ver ickly.
Moréhmoor told me "By gum, Pom, he is go

Well, what has that.got to dq with the fact that

_.you were a few split secomds late in pulling over
‘that crossgver? Has it enything -to do with you?

No, but we da gompare. Some of the expresses
will. come from Hitchin to Potters Bar in 20 minutes,

- som8. will take 23, We very often compcrc ‘speeds.

Sir Alan.

Mr. Gass,.

some of them take less #1till?

It depands on the coal.

- B4 -



Driver Stanley Trigg was recalled and“qgestioned:-

Qs You have been working the metropolltan link - have

Sir Alan. been on that link for approximately one month. What
was your kanqwledge of this line -~ and the Slow Line
in particuler? When dld you go,over this rosd before?

A, Three months previously.
Q. Wes this the flrst time yéﬁ;ﬁddiﬁeen over the road
between Hatfield ggdr&ondon after three months?
A, Yes, sir. o ;;:{“;;ﬂ-:wf :: .
Q. Is this tﬁe first tima you hava bwen over the Slow
Line slnce.the block werking haé beea reconverted?
A.  Yes, elr.. . . .. ; JJF; e
Qs -, . Have you algﬂed ot bhie: roaﬂ}
A, - | Yes, air. Wé alga fab'ﬁh@*:ﬂaﬂ @very slx months.
Q. : . You sﬂoppad fasb at PYookmana. Park. On whish ®ide
‘ of bhe platrovm? I
A. . 1 was- on the Slow. Liny. bhe plahtorm was on my side.
Q. | You remembar that? f??{f;f
A Yesostre T
Q. | " You ere sura? d_i'
A. Yes, sir. .
Qe Did you know you ware qp’;he Slow Line¥
A Yos. B -
Q. ' You arec sure you gia mot sbink you were on the
' Main~Llns? s
A. No sir. S J; . j;fi*b:
Q. © - 'what. nappaped to you? o
A, I left Brookmanl Park éhan the fuerd gave.rright away",

:T ‘had. a green light &b the aubp. ,

[EVIR)

Q- - “'What bad sou an_tne niataits

N

A, | Pottora Bar Dlsﬁdub ? ?;
Sir Alan Yes. a - ]{;;_ ﬁ?
Trigg  prbage light,
Q. What was the, Main Line?
A, Orange light,. _
Q. Two orange lights. Weii that pught to have warned you,

You went on prepared to 5t0p at the next stap signal?

A. I 4ld not ses 1t come off, it was green when I
looked at it,

‘.

Sir Alan. That is oonbcary to Bainee! evidence, Mr, Moas?



Kr. Noss.
Trigg.
Mr. Moss.
{ Trigg.
Q.

Sir Alan., .

A.

Sir Alan.

Mr. Creen.
Sir Klan.
Lr. Green,

Qe
sir Alan.

irigg.

&

It all depends how far you were frem the signal

. when you looked at it,

I had passed the Distant signal and T snut off
steam going underneath 1it.

Would you put it at 150 yards away from tho
signal?

I could not say so Tar as the Distent is concerned.
You hed a greea, an& what was ths other 21-nal
on tha Maln Line?

I never saw any light. in it,

- Pub theras are two llghts there?

The only light T saw wag the gresn light
appiloabie inu. on my rl.ght.sr

The Quter Home? You saw the Outer Home green?

It waes off at oy »ight, and the other cne was red.
4nd what tiae was thle? 10,77 10.87

Tt would be aboub that, sir. I do not know if

it would be as lste as that. We left Hotfield

at "fifey twe'. Probahly l0.3. I do not think

it would be 10.7 or 10.8.

What time d1d he leave Brookmans Park? Have
you got that settled? Whet does the Guard say?

10.86.
Is thls the womean Guard?

Yes.

You say you had e red light on the Mein Line.
What heppened at the Inner Home? When did you
start toc brake?

When I sew the Inner Home signal off ready to

" go through the lead.

But the;Inner Home was at danger?

There wos o red and a green light, cnd I am
certain that the signal that wes off wes my
signal, the left-hand signal. I hed clready mode
a partial application ready to go through the
lead to stop in the pletform.

What speed dld you get up after your shon 2t
Brookmans Perk? at what spsed did you puss
the Outer Home?

About 40 m.p.h.

Is that a falr estimate?

Yesa, 9ir, I think so.
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sir alen.
Mr.Johnson,
Sir alan.
Trigg.

Sir alan,

Lir. Moss.,

Sir Alan.

Mr. Moss.

Sir iflan,

Are you certain-gbout these Inner Homes? I gather from
your evidencs you zre got.. ¥You say "I saw the Inner
Home signals, . one.of which was red und the other green.
I was elmost certain thst the signal in-'the nOffn’ :
positlon was tne ons applicable to the Up Slow I--1ne“

It might be thp way I was talking, sir, but I shOuld _
not heve passed lt‘if T had not been ceryain it was wing-

You do not know.this line? You heve neve& been over it -
since this working was introduced? Are §ou sufe you did
not momentarily think you were on the NMain Linér -

No, sir, I am sure of that. Brookmans Parh platferm , '
would have told me that. -

L]

What speed were you going to take that c;ossover?
15 m.p.h. ' s j . .; . R
Wha't is the speod restriction OVQr-ib? | |

15 m.p. h I think sir.

R

But you arg tuntampﬁ nt to telling ng that bhe
signalman hed set this read for you, sid had ;pulled off.

Yes, 8ir. I aanthe slgnal, and I am’sure 1t was my
signal, B

40 m.p.h. ‘10,6. .- and the accident happened at 10.8.
according to the Signalman. and the Signalman says he
pulled off for the expréss at 10.7. What length of
view did you get of these signala? . _

A good view, sir.

Two or three train lengths?

YGS, Siro | ';‘”,'i'.' _'__.'z\_'.i,-'
Are you sure?

Yes, sir. There 1s Jdéi’a little bit of &’ curve. -

#5n you get thet checked up?

Yes.

-They are good signals to see?

Yes, sir.

You were stopped at Hatrield on the Slow Line at the
Advance Sterting signels, approximabsly 2 minutes,

I have been told-why, beocause of the train shead?

Mr. Moss, ocould not that Outer Home have been left of'f?

No. 1%? it 11 was off he. could not have dOne anything -
with 7. = ) . .

Couid the Sighalman hefe left etr ll?“

That means to - say whatever poaition 7 was in, if he did
leave 11 off the polnts would have to be 1oc#gd 11 15
released by 4.

4nd does 1l affect this auto at Brookmans Park?.

f -

—_——



Mr. lioas,.

L.

Sir 4Llan.

‘Mr. Moss,

Sir Alans
Mr. Moss.

Q.
Sir Alsn.

: Trigg.

J!'l.l

e

f‘l
wr. Cleavar,
Y

1%, Cleaver,

A,

Yes, lnscfar as they have got to be replaced behind
a previous trein vefore they come off. If the’
Signalman had 11 off, the signalman et Marshmoor
could not have pulled 4. He said he got a green
there, and it proves the previous traln cleared

the tracks and the signals had been replaced behind
the previous train, and they could not have been
left off.

So therefore he makes his statement that he pulled
4 and 7 afterwards, Suppose he forgot to do that,
to put back 4 and 7? ,

He mlght have put the signals back, ls that your
point?

He put back 1l esnd 12 and perhaps 10.

He could not take his Nain Line signals off then.
What was the speed of thae collision when you went
inte the huffer stops?..

I was taking the leed et abdbout 15 m.p.h. and the

. buffer stops are close to the lead. sc thet

would be sbout the sama.

- Dia you see the Down sxprsss aollido?
Yes, air.'

' What qpeqd was the Down express travelling?

About 30 m.p.h. We were a bit shaken at the timse,
but I should say about that speed.

. Were you quite fit for duty?
Oh, yes, sir, quite all right. .

There was nothing on your mind?

No, sir.
" Is the view from your engine a.good view?

| Yes, sir.

I did not sctually get op it, bub I know the engine.
You &o not seem to know the road very well?

Yes, sir, 1 know the' road well

But you had not been'ovar it ror some tima?

I should not, have gous over it if I had not known it,
How long were you firing? |

-About B'years.

You. oould remain off the road and go 6 or 12 months,
end still retain it ia your memory?

Yos.
-58-



Lir, Cleaver.

i

Mr. Cleaver.

LA,

Mr., Cleaver, -

A
Mr. Cleaver.
A,

Mr. Cleaver.

A - )
M. Gléavgr;

A

Mr, Johnson,

Sir Alan.

Mr. Cleaver,

Siry Alan.

.  Mr. Cleaver.

. Sir Alen.’
‘Tfigg.
Nr. Johnsoa..

o My

: < "
. .

Sir Alen,

MT. Cleaver.

If you had wanted a pilot you could meke a request,
and that would be granted?

Yes.
And like everyone else et Kihé“s Cross you knew
there had bean an alteration during the last five
weeks?

Yes.

‘”With-regard tio fhe.ébatement you made at the

Compeny's Enguiry;, you say you were almost certain.
What are ydu trying to tell uas? Are you trying to
-emphasize thet that - d8 ths signal, and yocu are
trylng to stress your pOsition, and inadvertently
you have used the wrong word? ‘Are you not as
confldent regarding tlie aspéct of the Inner Home
algnal ag yoq ara 9f the Quter Home slgnal?

Equally ae GOnfidenﬁ sie.
Did you aotually uee the uord Yalmostn?
YBB. ‘

In your flrst repOrt I think you said you are
confident the olgnel was oree.

I said .1 was sure,

You . now tell ze you ara egually &8 cerbain that this
signa‘ wag off, . .

I am . cezuain.

L

The word you used was "almost" and the statement
was read over to you. and you haard it.

wnat other repOrt Havé you Mr. Cleaver?

*A man. ganerally lqavas a report with hls

Supgrintandent when anything happens. I got a copy
of 1t o : _

Do you want ‘the word "almost" out®.

I want to know where it oame from, end if 1t ls the
intention of Trigg to leaye 1b there.

There is .no. sugges%ion or that Mr. Cleaver. Do you

really. think you. were dead oarbain about thls?
.The wofd has’ got jn the rep0rt by the way I spoke.

If T hed not heen certain it was my sigpnal I would

*ospot nave passed it

1t was quite darinitaly ‘brought out when I put it teo

Trigg, and it was Nhis own wordlng "I was almost suren”

' T..remember that word, and I think my colleagues

_remember 1t, and I was most careful when we read the
statement over to read that to Trigg. He accepted

-1t as the statement that he made.

It sounds a.very reasonable statement.

When a man 1s involved in this way he 1s very
disturbed. - In his Driginal report he 'seys
"I am sure ",



Mr, Cleaver., That is in the original report to the Rallway Conpany
which 1t is necessary for a wan to leave before he goes
off duty.

Whet has caused these words "almost certain" to creep -
in,

Sir Alan. We are putting & meaning on “almost'" which probably
he does not., D¢ you have any objection?

Vr. Musgreve. I do not like the term. I think he ocught to have
gquelified thet When he had the opportunity. He had the
epportunity when Mr. Jobnson sew him of saying that
he was certain.

dr, Cleaver. If that statement 15 not correct, I think the men
should have an Opportunity of putting it in order now.
I do not think it will agree with a statement he nade
previously to the Company.

Sir Alean. When.did you.mﬂke that statement?
Trigg. The next'morhlng,'the Monday norning.
Sir Alen. - "I am elmeet certain“ i1s weaker thean "I am Sure®.

Mr, Johnsan. I can turn out ‘the shorthand nptes of what took place,
and I was quite clear about the point when I put it.
I sald "Are you sbsolutely certaln?" and his reply
was "I ar almost certain®™ and this was read over to
‘him,  You agree that what is down here is ang astual
representation of what you said there?

Trigg. Yes,
 Sir Alan, ' - Why are, you altering it now?

Wr. Johnson., I think the other Officers will agree with me that
there was doubt on the point

Sir Alan, What :is Trigg saying now, Nr, Cleaver? He 1is not
gaying "I .am elmnet certain" he is saying "I am sure".

T Cleaver._ﬂThat is whet he is saylng at the Ministry Enquiry
4r. Goss. If he is certein it means thet the signalmen is wrong.
' I would like to ask a question on that stetement. I
think it is rather an unusual thing for o driver to
. report being involved iam an accident and saying im the
. first report to the Supérintendent that the Outer
"~ Homs signal was off, and "I am surs the ILnner Home
signal was off*. I ahould suggest that it would be
Just a noxmul statement to the Superintendent to the
effect that he was involved in an sccident, and as
Tar as he was concerned all signals wers off.

To gpeclfy two peartdeunlar signals ig the first
- statement seems rather outatandins

Sir Alen. - He had no obligation to put in thls report?

o Musgrave. Yes, he should report any irregularity.

Sir Alan, It 15 signed et a different time from the time
you made the report out.

Trigg. I mehq t-he report out at home and signed it at the
shed.
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Sir Alan.

- Trigg.

Sir Alean.

Triez.

M'. Goss.
¥r. pavies,
Sir Alen.

'Mr-. Johnson.

Lir. Frampton.

Mr. Barton,

Sir aAlan.

Why did you not sign it straight away?

I was going to put it on & proper report form.
Were you asked for a report?
No, you put in a report for all irregularities.

My point is that it is rather uvnusual to specify

twp particular. SLQnals, one of which happens to be
rether putstanding in this Enquiry.. One he says was
off, and the other he says *I am sure was_off" and
thet-ig the one about which there is some dispute.

He is sure of one znd not sure .about the cther.

He xnows one was off, and he is certain the other
was off.

It is much more certain than "almost certain®,

I propose, gentlemen, to expiunge the word "almost"
So far as we are concerned, on the Company's side,

I am emphatic about it. He did use the word
"glmost" and 1t did ‘convey to the other orflicers

- present a certain element of 'doubt, and was the

subject of comment afterwards. It did convey. doubt
to us. I think you will agpee Mr.” Frampton.

Yes, certainly.

Would it he right to say that on reflectfonuhe

desired to leave this word out? .Qn reflection

he wished uo withdraw the word?

Not' theb - L thirnk vhere is any reflection for me
to report on this aspect of it.

Fireman Leonard James Dungate was recalled and asked the
foliowling questlons - =

Q‘
Sir Alan,

.

> O£ b O > O = o

You sald you were engaged ih breaking up & lump
of coal, and looked out as you were approaching
the Inner Home signal and saw that the signal

for the Up Slow was in-the "Off" position. Do
you remember that?

That is-gorrect. sir. Thedriver had appliad
the braeke before we got to the Innsr Home.

What was the main lime signal showing?
A red light. -

-What was the main line signal et the Outer Home?

A red light alsp.

" A4nG the Distaht signals?

Both yeliow,
Do you xnow this rcad?

Well enough, sir;



Dungate.

Sir Alen.

Dungate.

&

ha
.

O

Tunlate.

Sir Alan.
Dungats.

Qs

A.

0

L

When were you last over this rcad?

Very recently, a week before.

How much firing experience have you hed?

61 years,

And you kpow this road, well, do you?

Yes.

If I suggested to you that the Main Line signal was
Zreen and the Inner Home on the Slow Line red, how
would you view that?

Which way d¢ you mean? ’

You are suggesting that the Slow Line was green and
the Main Line was red at the Inner Home. I suggest to
you that you were wrong, and that the Main Line was
green and the Slow Line red. I should be quite wrong,
should I?

Yes, you would be wroag.

You are very certain aboutf that?

We should not have passed the boerd otherwlse.

And what speed were you taking this crossover at®

I could not quite tell you. I was occupied in

breaking up a plece of coal.

. What speéd did you hit the buffer stops?

It was not hard. I could not say what speed.
15 m.p.h.? '
About that.

Did ycu have any conversation with Trigg immediately
efterwards about the ‘boards?

Wheﬁ'db'ygu-mean?

After you hadlcollided.

ﬁdt fc my knowledge,

Did you disouss 1t?

1 cannot remember, I am afraid.

p

Ycu have never worked over this rogd with a pessenger
train? '

Nct 8low Line.

This is the first time?

Yes.

But you have been over it in a freight train?

Hcw long ago?

Alnind n srAanes naA



AR '¥Sc you have not heen oﬁer the reed for about a year?
A, ~ Not, the Slow Line.. ,
Q. You have not been over the Slow Line for a year, but
‘you had' been over the Maln Line previpusly?
A. i week before. |
Q. You knew where you were?
&, Yes.'- . . . : _ ' | R
Q. =01 suégest that &ou thought yod might have been ou the
Main Line. ~How. would you view that° :
A, I should have looked at the Me in Line signal 1l 1% hed
_ been on the Main Line,
Q. You knew you were on the Slow Linq?
Ao YBS- ) .
Qo ,’.You stopped at Brookmans Park  Whioh side was the
'-platform°_ . , : , '
- . ' Y v
A, n'Driver s side, o
Q. . - . Do you: think Driver Trigg.mighh hava fergotten that he
.. 7. was on the Slow Line? - " i
A,  Fo, defin}.tely not.
Q.=i You.are, quite satisfied you both knew you were on the
Slow: Line.? ‘
. Yes.. -
 Notiing wrong with the engine? .
No. L f
Injector all right? : QOglrgii;right?
. -YBs. o
Signalman. George Thamas Baines, again-reoalled was
_ questioned L
[ 8ir Aian., You ‘héd this train passed you, No, 90, at LO- % and the
. ...agcident, happened, aceording to you, at 10- 8, 5 minutes
v+ .later, @A& you did not pull the signals for the express
uptil 10~ 7, You say 'thisg, +hat after the passage of
No. 90 you put back sxgnals 12, 11 and 10. Is that
right? S
. Yes. i
Qe You. put. back bar 4 and point 7. :I.am going tOo suggest

to you that you put back signals 10, 1l and 12 and that
- you did not put back bar 4 and point 7. You forgot that

‘:'chssovér;'bar 4 and point 7, and you had this other

local train described to you and you left 10 normal but
you sald you lowered 11 when-it ceme on to a certain
track circuit. ° You lowered No. 11 when UG was occupied.
" The Driver contradicts you there and he states that
signal 11 was. clear when he saw it. I am assuming that
ha could have sesn No. II for much more than 200 yards.



Sir Alan-
(contd)

1)‘-'.“ AJ-Bnu-

Sir Alan.

Baines.

wiroAlan.

Trines.

Sir Alan.

2aines.

-ir flan,

salnes,

Sir Alen.

I will heve that checked. That is hls stavement.

I suggest to you that you pulled 11 before this train g
got to UG and you had also pulled 12, but et 10- 7

you had this express described. to you and you

promptly put back 11, and you promptly put back 12
actually after the man had geen-it and you turned over
your crossover and pulled your Main Line signals.

Now, could that have happened?

No, certainly not.

And than having realised the position you .put back
those signels agein and pulled the crossover and
split this train. I suggest to you that there was
time for you to put.-back those pointa to normal, that
the trahn got half way through and you pulled them
again.

There may have been time, but I am definitely sure
that these polints were put beck as soon as the 7-I5
from Peterborough had gone by. 1 definitely remember
it. It is a matter of getting used to it.

That is the.point. You did not know an accident was
golng to happen. It is routine with you. You did
not know the express was ctoming. The expresas had

. not been desoribed to you until 10- 7, and that trai ®
-went. past at 10~ 3. You might have been occupied

with the Down train for all I know and you left thLat,
thét is the suggestion that is running through my mind
It depends on your statement that you put back that
crossover in eccordance with your usual practice.

My definits statement is that No. 11 signal was not
pulled off until he got ianto the second ipndication
track.

The ‘Driver is qulte certain thut he passed No. l2.
There 18 a direct confliot of evidence as betwsen
you and the Driver.

"I am telling you the truth.

You are both dolng sb I am surs.

T oannot depart from one atom of whet I have already

”'f said.

You do -not think you night heve by olstake pulled 11
or 12 on your thinking that you were golng to letb
No. 95 follow No. 90 apd that would be routine and a
very natural thing for you to do, then you had the
express on to you and you sadd to yoursel? "I nust
chenge the route, and it is a thlng thet must be

" happening every day?

I always meke the practice, ever since we have hed

- No. 11, never to change until he gots on to the

double track

h ]
I 1maglne thaet is so, Evén If you had done thet, I do
not think that has got anything to do with it,
Supposing if he had done that, he suggests that he
passed the Outer Home at about 45 miles an hour.’

If he was pesgsing et 45 miles an hour, he was
over-runpiog. It was beyond his speed.

He says thut both aignalg were clesr.



'
Baines?

=ir Alean,

RPaines,

Sir Alan,

Boines,
Sir Alen.
Baines.

Sir Alanp,

Baines.

Sir Alan,

raines,

¥ ,.Jdohnson.

dulnes,

Mr., Johnson.

Bdnines.

Zlr Alan.

R=ines,

I an’ afrald the Driver has made a mistake. £s 1 sald
" just now, I never pull off for a passenger train untll
both 1ndicators DEF and dcuble track G are coccupied.

In that czse he ought to have been slowea st the
Quter Home. He says he passed the Outcr Hone at 40
or 45 miles &an hour.

I am sorry I still think the Driver has made o mistake.
I always make a practice fcr & pasgsenger train coxing
in the Slow road never to pull off until boti LEF and
double track G are occupied.

How can you prove to m& that you hud not forsonten thet
that crossover was pulled and that you did cdeiinitely
pull 11 and 127 Do you see when I mean?

Yes, I cannot pull Ne. 10 until I get Nc. 12.

The Driver says thet he hed 11 =pnd 1& cff.

1 am afraid he haos made a L.lstake.

Can you prcve to me thoct he is meking & cistake? I
want t¢ have some proof from you.

I got the describing signal for 95, 9-32 from Hetfield,
at 10-4. It is a three minutes run frcm Brookmans
Park to there. That is where I got the describing
signal from - Hawkshead, By the time the 9-32 frco
Hatfield got towards the Outer Home, or just paat i the
Outer Home, I shculd hcsve the describing signel for

the Up express, the first part ¢f 94.

You tcld me thet you pulled the Up express at 10- 7,
and that this accidsent happened at 10- 8. It seens
tc me on timing ycu had abiut o minute in which to
put back that crosscver and pull it again, if
necessary. Can ycu prove to me that that did not
happen?

I did_not dc it.

Did you pull the Up Slow Distant for the previbus
train over the Up Slow line?

One cannot be certain. That depends on the previous
train pasSrng my track HIT.

You did nut kncow whether you did?t

I oannot say I am sure, but if the previcvus train had
pessed my HJ track I We.s Justified in pulling cff the
Distant fcr No. 90 off.

You do nct think ycu left that crossover?

Nu, I am sure I did not.

-B5-



